BOARD MEETING AGENDA
ANNUAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT FINANCING CORPORATION
June 24, 2025 beginning at 6:30 PM

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE
6230 SYLVAN ROAD, CITRUS HEIGHTS, CA

PHONE CALL IN: (253) 205-0468
PHONE MEETING ID: 820 1810 2948
COMPUTER AUDIO/LIVE MEETING PRESENTATIONS: https://chwd-org.zoom.us/j/82018102948

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you have a disability and need a
disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact
the General Manager at (916) 725-6873. Requests must be made as early as possible, and at
least one full business day before the start of the meeting.

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person at the District headquarters or remotely
through the phone number and link above.

Materials related to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Citrus Heights
Water District are posted on the Citrus Heights Water District website at www.chwd.org.

CALL TO ORDER:
Upon request, agenda items may be moved to accommodate those in attendance wishing
to address that item. Please inform the Chief Board Clerk or Deputy Board Clerk.

ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS:
VISITORS:

PUBLIC COMMENT:
The Public shall have the opportunity to directly address the Board on any item of interest
to the public before or during the Board’s consideration of that item pursuant to
Government Code Section 54954.3. Public comment on items of interest within the
jurisdiction of the Board is welcome. The Presiding Officer will limit comments to three
(3) minutes per speaker.

(A) Action Item (D) Discussion Item (I) Information Item

CONSENT CALENDAR:
All items under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be approved
by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of
the Board, Audience, or Staff request a specific item be removed for separate
discussion/action before the motion to approve the Consent Calendar.

CC-1. Minutes of the Citrus Heights Water District Financing Corporation Meeting—
August 27,2024 (A)
Recommendation:
Approve the minutes from the August 27, 2024 Annual Meeting of the
Citrus Heights Water District Financing Corporation.

’
CITRUS

HEIGHTS

W ATER
DISTRICT


https://chwd-org.zoom.us/j/82018102948

PRESENTATION:
P-1.  Status of the San Juan Water District/ CHWD Revenue Refunding Bonds Series
2012A (A)
Recommendation:
1. Approve the draft Annual Report for the SIWD/CHWD Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A.
2. Authorize Staff to file the Annual Report as required to the MSRB.

BUSINESS:
B-1.  Confirmation/Appointment of CHWD Financing Corporation Officers (A)
Recommendation:
Consider confirmation and appointment of Citrus Heights Water District
Financing Corporation Officers.

ADJOURNMENT:

CERTIFICATION:

I do hereby certify that this agenda was posted in a location accessible to the public at 6230
SYLVAN ROAD, CITRUS HEIGHTS, CA 95610 at least 72 hours prior to the regular
meeting in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2.

Wﬁﬂ/ Dated: June 19, 2025

Brittney Mooré;/bhief Board Clerk

Citrus Heights Water District Page 2



Item CC-1
Page 1

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT FINANCING CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES
August 27, 2024

The Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Citrus Heights Water District Financing
Corporation was called to order at 8:11 p.m. by President Riehle. Present were:

Raymond A. Riehle, President
David C. Wheaton, Vice President
Caryl F. Sheehan, Director

Staft:
Steve Anderson, General Counsel
Tammy Gordon, Director of Public Affairs
Annie Liu, Director of Administrative Services
Brittney Moore, Administrative Services Manager/Chief Board Clerk
Missy Pieri, Director of Engineering/District Engineer
Josh Nelson, Assistant General Counsel
Rebecca Scott, Director of Operations
Michael Shorter, Accounting Manager
Hilary Straus, General Manager
Carlos Urrutia, Strategic Advisor

VISITORS:
None.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

None.

CONSENT CALENDAR:

President Riehle asked for consideration and/or approval of the consent calendar.

CC-1. Minutes of the Citrus Heights Water District Financing
Corporation Meeting— December 20, 2023 (A)
Recommendation:
Approve the minutes from the December 20, 2023 Semi-Annual Meeting
of the Citrus Heights Water District Financing Corporation .

ACTION:
Director Sheehan moved and Vice President Wheaton seconded a motion to approve the
consent calendar.

The motion carried 3-0 with all Directors voting yes.

Citrus Heights Water District Page 1



Item CC-1
Page 2

PRESENTATION:

P-1.  Status of the San Juan Water District/ CHWD Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2012A (A)

ACTION:
Vice President Wheaton moved, and Director Sheehan seconded a motion to
Approve the draft Annual Report for the SIWD/CHWD Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A, and authorized Staff to file the Annual Report as
required to the MSRB.

The motion carried 3-0 with all Directors voting yes.
BUSINESS:
B-1.  Confirmation/Appointment of CHWD Financing Corporation Officers (A)

ACTION:
President Riechle moved, and Vice President Wheaton seconded a motion to
confirm and appoint the following Citrus Heights Water District Financing
Corporation Officers:

Caryl F. Sheehan Appointed as President
David C. Wheaton Appointed as Vice President
Raymond A. Riehle Appointed as Director
Annie Liu Reconfirmed as CFO

Hilary M. Straus Reconfirmed as Secretary

The motion carried 3-0 with all Directors voting yes.
ADJOURNMENT:

There being no other business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 8:17 p.m.

APPROVED:

Brittney C. Moore Caryl F. Sheehan, President
Chief Board Clerk Board of Directors

Citrus Heights Water District Citrus Heights Water District

Citrus Heights Water District Page 2



’ AGENDA ITEM: P-1
DISTRICT -~

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

DISTRICT STAFF REPORT TO
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CHWD FINANCING CORPORATION
JUNE 24,2025 REGULAR MEETING

STATUS OF THE SAN JUAN WATER DISTRICT/ CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT REVENUE REFUNDING

Subject: - BONDS, SERIES 2012A

Status: Information / Discussion Item

Report Date: June 16,2025

Prepared By: Annie Liu, Director of Administrative Services

OBJECTIVE:
1. Approve the draft Annual Report for the Citrus Heights Water District (CHWD) Revenue Refunding Certificates of
Participation, Series 2012A and other information related to debt financing by the District.

2. Authorize Staff to file Annual Report as required to the federal self-regulated organization, Municipal Securities Rulemaking
Board (MSRB).

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:

The Citrus Heights Water District Financing Corporation (the Corporation) was formed in July 2000 for the purpose of issuing the
$7.9 million in Certificates of Participation (COPs) for the financing of water meter installations and well improvements. Section
3.5 of the Bylaws for the Corporation requires that an annual meeting be held each year. The purpose of this meeting is to review
information or developments related to the COP financing and to fulfill a legal requirement for California non-profit corporations.

Included with Directors' agenda packets is a draft of the Continuing Disclosure Annual Report for the Revenue and Revenue
Refunding Bonds (Attachment 1). This report is a requirement of the District's debt issuance and is generally required for all
publicly-traded securities. It is filed with the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) data service of the MSRB, where these



Status of the CHWD Certificates of Participation, Series 2012A Page 2
CHWD Financing Corporation Meeting June 24,2025 AGENDA ITEM: P-1

reports are made available to the public. The Annual Report shows the status of CHWD's debt, and other financial and operating
information about the District as of December 31, 2024. Total outstanding debt for the District as of that date was $1,205,000.

2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds

CHWD originally issued Revenue Refunding Bonds in 2003 under the authority of the San Juan Water District (SJWD) Financing
Corporation and not under the authority of the CHWD Financing Corporation. However, staff has typically reported on the status
of the SIWD/CHWD debt issuance at the time of the CHWD Financing Corporation Annual Meeting.

CHWD participated with SJWD in a refunding of the 2003 Series debt that was completed in May 2012. The new debt issuance is
identified as the SIWD/CHWD Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A. This refunding resulted in a savings to SJWD and CHWD
over the remaining life of their respective debt. The principal amount outstanding on the Series 2012A bonds as of December 31,
2024 was $1,205,000. CHWD's annual principal and interest payments on the Series 2012A debt ranges from $168,400 to
$174,088 annually over the remaining life of the debt through its retirement in 2033 with an approximately outstanding balance of
$1.54 million including principal and interests.

In the 4th quarter of 2021 SJWD refunded its 2012 Bonds, detaching the CHWD bonds from their bond issuance. At the November
2021 Board meeting, staff provided an update advising that due to the amount outstanding on the bond and the cost of issuance,
the District would be best served by bundling a refunding of the 2012 Bonds with the potential need to fund capital projects in the
near future, assuming market and debt borrowing conditions are favorable.

Payments on the SJWD/CHWD debt issuance are paid semiannually by CHWD.

RECOMMENDATION:
1. Approve the draft Annual Report for the SJIWD/CHWD Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A.
2. Authorize Staff to file the Annual Report as required to the MSRB.

ATTACHMENT:
1. Draft 2024 Continuing Disclosure Annual Report
2. Series 2012A Revenue Refunding Bonds Debt Service Schedule - pg. 9 of the Official Statement, dated: April 26, 2012,
prepared by Citigroup.

ACTION:

Moved by Director , Seconded by Director , Carried



ATTACHMENT 1
2024 Continuing Disclosure Annual Report (Draft)



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
ANNUAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

SAN JUAN WATER DISTRICT
REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS
(SAN JUAN AND CITRUS HEIGHTS PROJECT)
SERIES 2012A

~
’ CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

CITRUS 6230 SYLVAN ROAD
it CITRUS HEIGHTS, CALIFORNIA 95610

W A TER
DISTRICT



SAN JUAN WATER DISTRICT
REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS
(SAN JUAN AND CITRUS HEIGHTS PROJECTS)

SERIES 2012A
MATURITY DATE
(February 1) CUSIP*
2025 798326 AN4
2033 798326 AM6

* CUSIP® is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP Global Services (CGS) is managed on behalf of
the American Bankers Association by S&P Capital Global Market Intelligence. Copyright © 2022 CUSIP Global Services. All rights
reserved. This data is not intended to create a database and does not serve in any way a substitute for the CUSIP Global Services.

CUSIP® numbers are provided for convenience of reference only. Citrus Heights Water District does not take any responsibility for
the accuracy of such numbers.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUGTION. ... e ceieieieeiceersasemsreassassaassassassassasssnssnssanssnssmsssnssnssnnssnssnsssnssnssnnnsnnsn 1
DEFINITIONS .t e ettt 1
DELIVERY OF THE ANNUAL REPORT .. neee ettt e e e 2

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S ... iiiieirirmrserersasnsresssassessenssnssenssnssnssennsnns 2

PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS OUTSTANDING..... ..o cieieeemrensmsenssnssmsssnssnssnnssnnsmssenssnnss 2
20T 2 BONDS ...t e e e s 2

RESERVE FUND REQUIRENMENTS .....oouiiiieiiiieericreasessnsssnssmssasssassmsssnssassnnssnssassennsnnss 2
2072 BONDS ..ot 2

FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OPERATING DATA ... eeeeeeeeeeeceecemcesn s smesnnennes 3
WWATER DELIVERIES . .. e ettt et et e e e 3
SERVICE CONNECTIONS. - et eet ettt e et et e et e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaes 3
WATER SALES REVENUES .. uneent ittt e e 3
WATER SYSTEM RATES AND CHARGES . ... e ettt e e e 4
OPERATING RESULTS AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE .....cueeeee e 5

CERTAIN DISCLAIMERS. . .......cceceeeeeieieeiteesas s sssssassmsssnssassasssnssmsssnssassanssnssnssanssnssnnsennsnn 6

(050 1105 I U 157 [0 S-1

APPENDIX A AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2023.........oooiiiiiiiinnririssss s sss s sss s s sss s s s ssans s s ssns A-1



INTRODUCTION

THIS CONTINUING DISCLOSURE ANNUAL REPORT, dated June 19, 2025 (the
“‘Annual Report”) has been prepared to satisfy the obligations of the Citrus Heights Water
District (the “District”).

Definitions

Unless otherwise required, the following are the defined terms for this Annual
Report.

2012 Bonds. 2012 Bonds means the San Juan Water District Revenue Refunding
Bonds (San Juan and Citrus Heights Project) Series 2012A, issued on May 16, 2012.

2012 Disclosure Certificate. 2012 Disclosure Certificate means that certain
Amended and Restated Continuing Disclosure Certificate, dated May 16, 2012, executed by
the District in connection with the issuance of the 2012 Bonds.

Debt Obligation. Debt Obligation means the 2012 Bonds.

Disclosure Document. Disclosure Document means the 2012 Disclosure
Certificate.

EMMA. EMMA means the Electronic Municipal Market Access, a service of the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

Fiscal Year. Fiscal Year means the period beginning on January 1 of each year and
ending on the last day of December of such year, or any other twelve-month period selected
and designated as the official Fiscal Year of the District.

Official Statements. Official Statements means that certain Official Statement,
dated April 26, 2012 with regards to the 2012 Bonds.

Rule. Rule means Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.

San Juan. San Juan means the San Juan Water District.



Delivery of the Annual Report

The District has agreed under the Disclosure Document to provide certain annual
financial information and operating data and notices of significant events. These covenants
have been made in order to assist the underwriters of the Debt Obligation in complying with
the Rule. As provided in Section 3 of the Disclosure Document, this Annual Report is being
prepared for publication with EMMA for the benefit of the owners of the Debt Obligation and
the underwriter. Capitalized terms used in the Disclosure Certificate, which are not
otherwise defined herein, shall have the respective meaning specified in the Official
Statement.

The following is information as required under Section 4 of the Disclosure Document.
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements of the District for the Fiscal Year ending
December 31, 2024 are attached hereto as Appendix A.

PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS OUTSTANDING

2012 Bonds

As of the date of this Annual Report, the outstanding principal amount of the 2012
Installment Purchase Agreement attributable to the District in connection with the 2012
Bonds is $1,205,000. As of Fiscal Year ended 2024, the outstanding principal amount of the
2012 Installment Purchase Agreement attributable to the District in connection with the
2012 Bonds is $1,205,000.

RESERVE FUND REQUIREMENTS

2012 Bonds

Pursuant to the 2012 Bonds Indenture, there is no debt service reserve fund.



FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OPERATING DATA
Water Deliveries
The following table summarizes water deliveries in acre feet for the last Fiscal Year.
CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

WATER DELIVERIES (in acre feet)
Fiscal Year 2024

Treated Water Groundwater Total Water
Deliveries Deliveries Deliveries
10,783 687 11,470

Source: Citrus Heights Water District.
Service Connections

The following table represents a summary of average service connections to the
Water System for the last Fiscal Year.

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
SERVICE CONNECTIONS
Fiscal Year 2025

Percent
Service Connections Increase/(Decrease)
20,379 0.16%

Source: Citrus Heights Water District.

Water Sales Revenues

The following table shows annual water sales revenues of the District for the last
Fiscal Year.

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
WATER SALES REVENUES

Fiscal Year

Ending Percent
December 31 Sales Revenues Increase/(Decrease)
2024 $21,621,835 8.57%

Source: Citrus Heights Water District.



Water System Rates and Charges

The table below lists the annual water system rates and the percentage rate
increases approved by the Board of Directors of the District for the last two completed
Fiscal Years for single family residences.

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
WATER SYSTEM RATES AND CHARGES - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCES

Fiscal Year

Ending
December 31 Annual Rate Percent Increase
2024 $1,054.68 8.25%
2023 $974.34

Source: Citrus Heights Water District. 1” meter bi-monthly service charge with 20 units/month of water consumption.

(REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK)



Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage

The following table is a summary of operating results for the most recently
completed fiscal year. These results have been derived from the District’'s Financial
Statements but exclude certain non-cash items and include certain other adjustments.

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING RESULTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Revenues
Water Sales $ 21,621,835
Capacity Fees, Other Fees and Charges 712,683
Interest Earnings(") 1,224,093
Miscellaneous 5,876
Total Revenues $ 23,561,487
Operation and Maintenance Expenses
Water Purchases $ 2,982,507
Pumping & Well Maintenance 742,415
Transmission & Distribution 3,896,342
Administrative & General and Conservation 6,736,810
Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses 14,358,074
Net Revenues 9,203,413
Rate Stabilization (RS) Reserve 0
Net Revenues & RS Reserve $ 9203413
Parity Debt Service
2012 Installment Purchase Agreement 174,088
Total Parity Debt Service $ 174,088
Total Debt Service Coverage 52.87

Citrus Heights Revenues Available for other Purposes $ 9,029,325

(1) Excludes interest expense in the amount of $39,106.

Source: Citrus Heights Water District

(REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK)



CERTAIN DISCLAIMERS

The information contained in this Annual Report expresses only the views of the
applicable party. An explanation of the significance of any such information may be
obtained from the applicable party; provided, however, that no information provided by any
party is incorporated in this Annual Report. The District undertakes no responsibility to
oppose any revision or withdrawal of such information contained in this Annual Report.

To the extent the District provides information in this Annual Report, the District is
not obligated to present or update information in future Annual Reports. Investors are
advised to refer to the applicable Official Statement for the Debt Obligations for information
concerning the initial issuance of and security for the Debt Obligations.

By providing the information in this Annual Report, the District does not imply or
represent (a) that all information provided in this Annual Report is material to investors’
decisions regarding investment in the Debt Obligations, (b) the completeness or accuracy of
any financial, operational or other information not included herein or in the Official
Statements, (c) that no changes, circumstances or events have occurred since the date of
this Annual Report (other than as contained herein), or (d) that no other information exists
which may have a bearing on the District’s financial condition, the security for the Debt
Obligations or an investor’s decision to buy, sell or hold the Debt Obligations.

The information set forth in this Annual Report or incorporated in this Annual Report
has been furnished by the District and is believed to be accurate and reliable but is not
guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness. Statements contained in or incorporated by
this Annual Report which involves estimates, forecasts or other matters of opinion, whether
or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be
construed as representations of fact. Further, expressions of opinion contained in this
Annual Report or incorporated in this Annual Report are subject to change without notice
and the delivery of this Annual Report will not, under any circumstances, create any
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the District. The District is relying
upon and has not independently confirmed or verified the accuracy or completeness of
information provided by others or other information incorporated by reference therein.

No statement contained in this Annual Report should be construed as a prediction or
representation about future financial performance of the District.  Historical results
presented herein may not be indicative of future operating results.



CONCLUSION

The information set forth in this Annual Report has been obtained from sources
believed by the District to be reliable and is fairly presented.

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Hilary M. Straus
General Manager

S-1



APPENDIX A

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)



CITRUS
HEIGHTS

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE
FINANCIAL REPORT

W A T E R
DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR ENDING
DECEMBER 31, 2024



ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE
‘; FINANCIAL REPORT

Fiscal years ending December 31, 2023 and 2024

CITRUS
HEIGHTS

W ATER
DISTRICT

Citrus Heights Water District
Citrus Heights, CA

Prepared by:
Citrus Heights Water District
Administrative Services Department

6230 Sylvan Road
Citrus Heights, CA 95610
www.chwd.org




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
For The Years Ended December 31, 2024

Table of Contents

Introductory Section Page

Letter of Transmittal i

Government Finance Officers Association Award vii
Organizational Chart viii
Service Area Map with Cities Served ix
Board of Directors and Principal Officers X
Financial Section Page
Independent Auditor's Report 1
Management's Discussion and Analysis 7

Basic Financial Statements:

Balance Sheets 17
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 18
Statements of Cash Flows 19
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 23

Required Supplementary Information:

Schedule of the Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Position

Liability and Related Ratios as of the Measurement Date 50
Schedule of Contributions 52
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 54

Schedule of Contributions - Agent Multiple Employer Plan 56



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024

Table of Contents (continued)

Statistical Section Page

Financial Trends

Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Component 64
Operating Revenue by Source 66
Operating Expenses by Activity 67

Revenue Capacity

Revenue Base 70

Water Rates 71

Customers by Type 72

Principal Customers 73
Debt Capacity

Ratios of Outstanding Debt 76

Debt Coverage 77

Demographic and Economic Information

Demographic and Economic Statistics 80
Principal Employers 81

Operating Information

Full-Time Employees by Department 84
Operating Indicators 85



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



Board of Directors
CITRWUS Raymond A. Riehle, President

Caryl F. Sheehan, Vice President
HEIGHTS Va David Wheaton, Director
—_
W ATEHR U
VL 2 o - Hilary M. Straus, General Manager/Secretary
DISTRICT = Annie Liu, Director of Administrative Services/Treasurer

June 16, 2025

Honorable Members of the Board of Directors:

We are pleased to present the Citrus Heights Water District's (“District” or “CHWD?”)
eighth Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (“ACFR”) for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2024. This report was prepared by District staff in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) and audited in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards by a firm of certified public accountants.

The ACFR provides an assessment of the District's financial condition, informs readers
about District services, includes information about capital improvement projects, and
discusses current initiatives within the District’'s Basic Financial Statements. Financial and
demographic trend information is provided within the statistical section located at the end of
the report. District Management is responsible for the accuracy of the data presented
and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the information and
data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects and it is presented in a manner that
provides a fair representation of the financial position and operations of the District.
Furthermore, all disclosures that are necessary to enhance the Board’s understanding of the
financial condition of the District have been included.

The District’s financial statements have been audited by LSL, LLP(LSL), a firm of independent
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the District for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2024 are free of material misstatements. The independent audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unmodified opinion that the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending December
31, 2024, were fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The Independent Auditors’ Report
is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the financial statements in the form of the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A) Section. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A can be found immediately after the
Independent Auditors’ Report.

Profile of Citrus Heights Water District

The District was established in 1920 as the Citrus Heights Irrigation District, encompassing
slightly more than 4.7 square miles and serving approximately 225 farms. CHWD currently



serves water to a population of approximately 67,000 people within an approximate
13-square-mile service area.

The District carries out its mission with a highly motivated and competent staff that is
empowered to conduct the District’'s business by placing the customers’ needs and welfare
first. Each day, the District's employees strive to carry out their work, mindful of the District’s
mission, “to furnish a dependable supply of safe, quality water delivered to its customers in
an efficient, responsive, and affordable manner.”

Governance and Organizational Structure

CHWD is a special district established by the State of California. The District is governed by
a three-member Board of Directors elected to a four-year term by voters who reside in the
District’s service area. Since 2020, CHWD Board elections are “By-District,” whereby only
those customers who reside in the same CHWD District that a Board Member lives in will
vote for that Board position. In 2024, The District was staffed by 38 full-time equivalent
employees assigned to four departments: Administrative Services, Public Affairs,
Engineering, and Operations. The General Manager and District General Counsel are
appointed by, and report directly to, the Board of Directors. All other staff members report to
the General Manager or designee.

Water Supply

In 2024, the District purchased 94% of its water from San Juan Water District (SJWD)
and delivered it to more than 20,000 residential and commercial service
connections. Additionally, the District maintains six groundwater wells and approximately
253 miles of pipeline. CHWD has delivered groundwater to customers since 1943.

Accounting and Budget Structure

CHWD operates as an enterprise fund with a fiscal year that begins January 1 and ends on
December 31. GAAP requires local governments to use a proprietary-type fund, such as an
enterprise fund, to account for business-type activities similar to those found in the private
sector. An enterprise fund is one in which the expenditures are supported by fees collected
primarily through charging users in exchange for services. CHWD operations are supported
entirely by fees collected from customers in exchange for providing water service and
managing the groundwater basin.

CHWD’s management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the internal
control structure that ensures the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or
misuse. The internal control structure ensures that adequate accounting data is compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. CHWD'’s internal
control structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met.
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed
the benefits likely to be derived, and the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates
and judgments by management.

CHWD’s Board adopts a budget prior to each fiscal year. The budget authorizes and provides
the basis for reporting and control of financial operations, accountability for CHWD’s



enterprise operations, and capital projects. The budget is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting and is consistent with the presentation of CHWD’s ACFR. As part of the budget
process, a Financial Model is updated annually to analyze revenue and expenses along with
capital improvements. Also, beginning in FY2018, CHWD’s Board adopted an accelerated
payoff schedule to reduce the District’s unfunded actuarial liability to the following: 20 years
(other post-employment benefits) and 15 years (pension) amortizations. This accelerated
payoff will result in savings to the District's customers versus the previous, longer
amortization.

Financial Policies

The CHWD financial policies include many of the District’s financial management practices
that are used for operational and strategic decision making. These policies also allow the
Board of Directors and community stakeholders to monitor how effectively the District is
managing its financial responsibilities, as well as providing a means for holding the District
fiscally accountable. These policies are reviewed annually to incorporate minor changes to
existing policy, or major shifts in financial priorities at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

e Investment Policy — The Board has adopted an investment policy that conforms to
state law, CHWD'’s ordinances and resolutions, prudent money management, and the
‘prudent person” standards. The objectives of the Investment Policy are safety,
liquidity, and then yield. Since 2022, funds have been invested in various securities as
authorized by CHWD’s Investment Policy, with part of the District’s funds invested in
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) and California’s Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF).

e Reserve Policies — During 2024, the District has 10 Reserve accounts with supported
policies to balance ongoing operations to capital improvement programs. These funds
are allocated to the maintenance, repair, replacement, or improvement of water
system infrastructure. Adequate reserves, along with sound financial policies, provide
financial flexibility to counter unanticipated expenditures or revenue fluctuations.

Audit and Financial Reporting

State Law and bond covenants require CHWD to obtain an annual audit of its financial
statements by an independent Certified Public Accountant. The accounting firm of LSL
conducted the audit of CHWD'’s financial statements. Their unmodified Independent Auditor’s
Report appears in the Financial Section.

Risk Management
CHWD participates in the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance
Authority (ACWA/JPIA) for the purchase of workers’ compensation, liability, property,

automobile, and fidelity insurance. The typical liability limits are $5 million per
incident / occurrence.



Economic Condition, Outlook and Major Initiatives

CHWD is primarily in a residential community, with some commercial enterprises within its
boundaries. The District’s service area is largely built out; therefore, the District does not
anticipate a significant growth in revenue based upon substantial new development. The
District is forecasting a slow but steady revenue increase based on 0.5% growth per year
from the demand in small in-fill of housing or commercial development within District
boundaries.

CHWD operates as an enterprise fund, meaning the costs of providing water service and
protecting groundwater resources are financed by rates and fees charged to District
customers. Since the District does not receive tax revenue, operating revenues consist
primarily of water sales and bi-monthly service charges. Water use has stayed relatively
consistent with the decrease in usage from state-wide drought mandates enacted in 2013.
The District expects consumption to continue decreasing in the next few years. This drop in
demand created a gap between the amount of water customers were projected to use, and
the amount they used, and contributed to the need for a new rate study and Financial Model
rebuild.

CHWD and its wholesale water supplier, San Juan Water District (SJWD), continue to
encounter changes in operations due to new regulations. The impact of current and future
regulations, and the resulting cost impact on water supply operations, are an ongoing
challenge for the District. The District will continue seeing wholesale water cost increase in
2025, per the Wholesale Water Rate Study Report issued by SJWD in January 2024.

As of January 1, 2025, CHWD charges a uniform commodity rate of $1.35 per unit of water
and a bi-monthly fixed charge of $137.30 for a 1-inch water meter. The average CHWD
customer rate bill remains below the regional Sacramento average cost. The District
continues to repair and replace aging infrastructure throughout its system. In 2024, the
Operations Department completed 353 service repairs/replacements, 20 valve replacements,
and 16 hydrant installments / replacements. The Engineering Department also completed the
design, installation, and inspection of 4,200 linear feet of water mains ranging in size from
6-inch to 18-inch, 24 valves and 90 water services.

Capital projects scheduled for 2024 total $13.8 million, which include the construction of the
District’s seventh well, and the design and commencement of construction of the District’s
eighth well. In the last few years, the District has secured approximately $6.6 million in grant
funding for the construction of the District's two new wells. However, due to delays in the
grant process, the District has not yet received the grant funding as of May 2025.

Long-Term Financial Planning

Citrus Heights Water District utilizes several planning strategies when considering long-term
financial forecasts.

e Strategic Plan — Strategic planning involves establishing a vision for the future and a
clear mission statement to provide direction and define what the organization stands
for and what it has pledged to accomplish. Since 2016, CHWD has held an annual
strategic planning workshop for the Board of Directors, management, and at-large
customers. The purpose of the workshop has been to review the District's mission
statement and values, and to implement the District’s mission and values through an



e Annual Work Program. The Work Program includes three-year goals and one-year
objectives, which emphasize the District’'s commitment to promoting the efficient use
of water, managing CHWD’s water supply, completing capital improvements, and
optimizing organizational efficiency. The Strategic Plan and its accompanying Annual
Work Program form the basis for the District’s priority-based budgeting efforts.

e Project 2030 Water Main Replacement Plan — This plan was identified during the
strategic planning process as a key strategy for engaging customers in long-range
water main replacement planning and funding efforts. The purpose of this plan is to
inform customers about challenges and opportunities, and the current actions being
undertaken to ensure water supply reliability, and prepare for the replacement of aging
infrastructure.

e Capital Improvement Plan — The Strategic Plan lays the groundwork for the Capital
Improvement Plan, which includes project schedules and projected costs for
production and water supply facilities identified in a 1999 Facilities Master Plan. The
Capital Improvement Plan is a ten-year forecast and a capital reinvestment plan.

« 10-Year Financial Planning Model — The District analyzes 10-year financial
projections to assist with long term operational and capital planning, and funding,
including Prop 218 rates and wheeling rates.

e Annual Budget — A key component of financial planning is the budget, which is
prepared, reviewed and adopted annually. During the 2" and 3™ quarter each year,
District Finance staff prepares a draft budget, based upon an analysis of the Financial
Planning Model and revenue/expenditure submissions from CHWD’s departments.
The budget is presented to the Board of Directors for approval prior to the beginning
of the next fiscal year. The annual budget includes forecasts for revenues, operating
expenditures, and capital expenditures, and is formulated using a priority-based
budgeting approach.

o Water Meter Replacement Program— As CHWD’s first generation of meters age-out,
the District, along with a consortium of 11 agencies, completed a Meter Replacement
Program Study to identify opportunities for partnership and strategies for each agency
in the short and long-term to optimally manage meter replacements. Currently, the
District is working with the Regional Water Authority to develop a potential regional
purchasing program to achieve economies of scale when purchasing meters or other
parts and materials.

Awards and Acknowledgements

Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Citrus Heights Water
District for its ACFR for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023. This was the seventh
consecutive year that the District achieved this prestigious award. To be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a governmental agency must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized ACFR. The report must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal
requirements.



A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a one-year period. CHWD believes that this ACFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and is submitting
it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Preparation of this report was accomplished through the combined efforts of the District
Finance staff along with support from the various departmental directors, managers, and
supervisors. CHWD staff’'s dedicated efforts, professionalism, and contributions to CHWD’s
ACFR is greatly appreciated. We would also like to thank the CHWD Board of Directors for
their continued support in planning and implementing the District’s fiscal policies.

Respectfully submitted,

Hilary M. Straus Annie Y. Liu
General Manager/Secretary Director of Administrative Services/
Treasurer

Vi



P

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Citrus Heights Water District
California

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2023

Cheatogfo. P- Morniel

Executive Director/CEO

\ii



uepluyddL sio
/8uuaauiduz
:h“u:@,.”“._d 123ui8u3
.._o_._um il
1sAjeuy J23uigu3 I}
juawafeuepy 1A 318l v jedpung
suonesado SunsauiBuz SOIES S

sdleyy dlqnd
40 JopaaIg 40 Jopaag Jo Jopang u.o ._OH..U..__Q
‘s329f0.d |erads pue ‘Buipung ‘s3a8foad |eads pue ‘sanss| |eJopay sadsu -syefoid jerdads
19Aed 21eY-UON ‘SiiEjy |eIudWUIAN0S19}U| ‘UoKeINPT pue ‘23e3S ‘|euociSay ‘uonuanald sso ‘Alages ‘Suiiala N pue 5 ueld \m"w ot pue ‘pieog ayi Jo 43D N YSIY “dH ‘Buiuueld
8 yoeanno Ayl /- D ‘uol 104u| ) ‘Aouayy3 Ja1e 193148 S 2e4 ‘Ayjenp ‘_wuma... pue «:ozhno_gcn i) .Eﬁmo._n_ a:oE.u>9.nE_ {ede, , 218918435 ‘Woddng ..uOm >mo_o—usuah u _uJE‘_o_:_
a1qnd 2119nd ‘uoney D PUISIA 1INquIsIQ 1318\ JO & 1B\l pUE SUO}; o S321A13S JBW0ISN) ‘Suiseyding ‘Jainseas] ‘adueury

Ja8euep |asuno)
|easuapn |easuapn
a s10322410 ﬂ

40 pieog

pZ0Z 1034 |D3sld

o idd1¥1sia
o yaivm
SLHDIIH
sSsnyuLID




CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Service Area Map with Cities Served

Citrus Heights Water District

1

And Surrounding Areas
TWIN OAKS AVE —
= CHERRY AVE
ES
g §
/ —
ANTELOHE RD o E R 9
e > =
—~_ areors | 3 :
o = E
= z
l'l_:. m
Fis @o@_\\"‘@ OAK AVE OAK AV
&, W
8
1]
g
= ELM AVE
= a ol
B 5
= 2 E m
% £ 2
g z =
Z = w
z 2 i 8
; w
w
/ GREENBACK LN GREENBACK LN
. ) o ) cwo Boundary
'EE é < | I:l Roseville
WE hg: E I:l Carmichael
E £ E - Antelope
<
B E : = I:l Citrus Heights
= MADISON AVE r‘ |:| Fair Oaks
Orangevale
- = Placer County

.I‘




Principal Officials

Executive Staff

, General Manager/Secretary: Hilary M. Straus

P Director of Administrative Services/Treasurer: Annie Liu

CITRWUS
HEIGHTS

W ATER Board of Directors

DISTRICT o ) )
— District 1: Caryl F. Sheehan, Vice President

Term Expiration: December 2028
6230 Sylvan Road

P.O. Box 286 District 2: Raymond A. Riehle, President
Citrus Heights

California T

95611-0286 Term Expiration: December 2026

phone District 3: David C. Wheaton, Director

916/725-6873

; Term Expiration: December 2026
ax

916/725-0345

website
www.chwd.org

Board of Directors

Caryl F. Sheehan
David C. Wheaton
Raymond A. Riehle

General Manager/
Secretary
Hilary M. Straus

Director of
Administrative
Services/Treasurer
Annie Liu




FINANCIAL SECTION



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



LS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors
Citrus Heights Water District
Citrus Heights, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Citrus Heights Water District (the “District”), as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2024, and 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the District, as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller's Minimum Audit Standards for California Special
Districts. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, effective for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.
This standard establishes recognition and measurement guidance for all types of compensated absences, including
vacation, sick leave, and sabbatical leave. The implementation of this standard required the District to revise its
accounting policies and restate beginning balances where applicable. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Jepwnideal b

= T ol Mumier of
Z~Z PrimeGlobal

The Association of Advisory
and Accounting Firms

LSLCPAS.COM




| SL

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors
Citrus Heights Water District
Citrus Heights, California

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards,
and the State Controller's Minimum Audit Standards for California Special Districts will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, and the State Controller's Minimum Audit Standards for California Special Districts, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and required pension and other postemployment benefits schedules, as listed on the table of contents,
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



| SL

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors
Citrus Heights Water District
Citrus Heights, California

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises
the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express
an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements,
or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude
that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 16, 2025, on our
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

LSL, LLP

Sacramento, California
June 16, 2025



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2024

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides users of the Citrus Heights Water District
(District) an analytical overview of the District’s financial position for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024.
The readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the additional
information furnished in the introductory section, financial statements, and related notes, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

** The District's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilites and deferred inflows of
resources at the end of year 2024 by $99,956,688. About 68 percent of the District's net position,
$68,125,815, is composed of the capital assets of the District — the water transmission and distribution
system, water production facilities, land, buildings, and equipment. Unrestricted net position totaled
$31,830,873, up from $27,124,117 at the end of year 2023. The continued administration of the water main
replacement charge to fund water main improvements and a notable increase in interest income contributed
to the surplus.

¢+ Capital improvement spending in the year 2024 increased by $504,703 compared with 2023. The increase
was mainly due to replacements and new purchases of operational vehicles and machinery. The maijority of
replacements and purchases were budgeted in prior years. However, due to inventory shortage, the
purchases were not completed until 2024. The replacement of aging pipelines and water service connections
throughout the District’'s system continued to account for the majority of the $4.3 million additions to the
District’s capital assets in 2024.

«» The District's operating revenues for 2024 were $22,334,518, which is 10.9% higher than the prior year of
$20,132,024. This higher revenue is attributable to the increase of water rates as well as the increase of water
consumption in 2024. About 97 percent of the 2024 operating revenues, $21,621,835, came from water sales
to customers.

% The District’s total net long-term liabilities at the end of 2024, including the 2012 Revenue Refunding bonds,
pension liability, SBITA liability, liability for other postemployment benefits (OPEB), and compensated
absences is $9,001,315. GASB Statement No. 68 required the recording of pension liability amounting to
$6,077,953. GASB Statement No. 75 required the recording of OPEB liability in the amount of $1,268,135.
Liabilities from Bond debt decreased by $174,088 due to continued principal payments during 2024.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of a series of basic financial statements including the Statement of Net Position,
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements. In addition to the Basic Financial Statements, other supplementary information is provided
for further information and analysis.

The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the District’s overall financial
status. The Notes to the financial statements explain some of the information in the financial statements and
provide more detailed data. The required supplementary information, although not part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) to provide more context
regarding the financial statements from an appropriate operational, economic, or historical perspective.

The District’s financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units on an accrual basis. Under this basis, revenues
are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses are recognized in the period in which they are
incurred, and depreciation of assets is recognized in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the District are included in the statement of net
position. The statement of net position presents the financial position of the District on a full accrual historical cost
basis and provides information about the nature and amount of resources and obligations at year-end.



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2024

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT

Balance Sheet

The following table summarizes assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position on
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022:

% Increase

(Decrease)
FY 2023 FY 2022
Vs \'4]

FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2024 FY 2023
Current assets $ 39,167,650 $ 34,242,135 $ 28,593,899 14.4% 19.8%
Capital assets, net 69,491,913 67,806,524 66,619,236 2.5% 1.8%
Total Assets 108,659,563 102,048,659 95,213,135 6.5% 7.2%
Deferred Outflows 2,327,611 3,044,829 3,056,673 -23.6% -0.4%
Current liabilities 1,568,386 1,638,707 1,506,167 -4.3% 8.8%
Non-current liabilities 9,001,315 9,230,514 9,060,929 -2.5% 1.9%
Total Liabilities 10,569,701 10,869,221 10,567,096 -2.8% 2.9%
Deferred Inflows 460,785 857,276 483,907 -46.3% 77.2%

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 68,125,815 66,242,874 65,042,165 2.9% 1.8%
Unrestricted 31,830,873 27,124,117 22,091,261 17.3% 22.8%
Total Net Position $ 99,956,688 $ 93,366,991 $ 87,133,426 71% 7.2%

The total net position of the District increased from $87.13 million in 2022 to $93.37 million in 2023 and increased
to $99.96 million in 2024. The District’s total assets increased by $6.61 million, or 6.5%, in 2024 compared to
2023, and $6.84 million, or 7.2%, in 2023 compared to 2022.

Deferred outflows decreased by approximately $0.72 million and deferred inflows decreased by approximately
$0.40 million, in 2024 compared to 2023, respectively. The decreases are due to changes in actuarial assumptions,
including return on pension plan investments affecting the calculation of the pension liability.

In 2024, total liabilities decreased by $0.30 million, or 2.8%, compared to 2023. This is a relatively minor change.
Total non-current liabilities decreased by approximately $0.23 million, or 2.5%, compared to 2023. The changes in
2023 and 2024 are negligible in comparison with 2021 and 2022, indicating a period of relative stability.

The increase in net position over the three-year period totals $12.82 million, or 14.7%, reflecting a combination of
net income and capital contributions.



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2024

NET POSITION

Unrestricted
31,830,873
32%

Netinvestmentin
capital assets
68,125,815
68%

Changes in Net Position

Net position increased by $6.59 million, or 7.1%, from the prior year. Operating revenues exceeded operating
expenses by $5.30 million, which accounts for 80.4% of the increase in net position. Additionally, the receipt of
$1.26 million in nonoperating investment income accounted for about 19.1% of the overall growth in net position.

Total operating revenues increased in 2024 by $2.20 million, or 10.9%, from 2023. The factors that contributed to
this increase include approximately $1.71 million increase of water sales due to water rates and water
consumptions increase, $188,432 increase from charges for penalties & costs, and $240,166 increase of
connection fees. Although nonoperating investment income continues to significantly enhance the overall growth
in net position for 2024, it declined by $178,437 compared to the prior year, primarily due to a net decrease in the
fair value of investments.

In 2024, operating expenses increased by $1.46 million, or 9.4%, from 2023. There are three main factors that
contribute to this increase. First, approximately 40% of the overall increase was attributable to higher salaries and
wages, along with a rise in pension expenses resulting from CalPERS’ recognition of an increase in the net
pension liability during the measurement period. Second, in prior years, the District recorded equipment rental
costs to capital projects based on CalTrans standard rates, consistent with past practices. However, this year,
equipment depreciation and maintenance expenses were instead charged directly to operating expenses. This
change led to a $437,126 increase in operating expenses, accounting for 30% of the total increase. In addition,
the District allocated additional resources toward professional support services in anticipation of the 2030 Water
Main Replacement Project, resulting in higher operating expenses.



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2024

The following table summarizes the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024,
2023, and 2022:

% Increase

(Decrease)
FY 2023 FY 2022
vs Vs

2024 2023 2022 FY 2024 FY 2023
Operating Revenues:
Water Sales $ 21621835 $ 19915090 $ 18,934,457 8.6% 5.2%
Connection and Other Fees 712,683 216,934 499,297 228.5% (56.6%)
Total Operating Revenues 22,334,518 20,132,024 19,433,754 10.9% 3.6%
Operating Expenses:
Customer service admin/general 6,248,835 5,706,961 4470,788 9.5% 27.7%
Water purchases 2,982 507 2,858,841 2,785,929 4.3% 26%
Transmission and distribution 3,896,342 2,796,502 2,637,991 39.4% 6.0%
Pumping & well maintenance 742 415 842 529 996,949 (11.9%) (15.5%)
Water efficiency (conservation) 487,975 697,684 696,635 (30.0%) 0.2%
Depreciation & amortization 2,676,870 2,668,321 2,606,180 0.3% 2.4%
Total Operating Expenses 17,034,944 15,570,838 14,194,472 9.4% 9.7%
Operating income 5,299,574 4,561,186 5,239,282 16.2% (12.9%)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Income 1,260,199 1,438,634 -30,997 (12.4%) (4741.2%)
Miscellaneous income 3,273 19,395 34,240 (83.1%) (43.4%)
Interest Expense (39,106) (50,767) (55,981) (22.9%) (9.3%)
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 2,603 21,674 (39,333) (88.0%) (155.1%)
(Expenses) ) 1,226,969 1,428,936 (92,071) (14.2%)  (-1652.0%)
Contributions 6,526,543 5,990,122 5,147,211 9.0% 16.4%
Capital Contributions
Contributed Assets 63,154 243 443 440,679 (74.1%) (44 8%)
Total Capital Contributions 63,154 243,443 440,679 (74.1%) (44.8%)
Change in Net Position 6,589,697 6,233,564 5,587,890 5.7% 11.6%
Net position, beginning of year 93,366,991 87,133,426 81,545 536 7.2% 6.9%
Net Position, End of Year $ 99,956,688 $ 93,366,991 $ 87,133,426 71% 7.2%

10



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2024

Capital Assets

As of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the District’'s investment in capital assets, net of related debt, was
$68.12 million, $66.24 million, and $65.04 million, respectively. This includes the water transmission and
distribution system (underground pipelines, water services, water meters, fire hydrants, and other components),
water production facilities (groundwater wells), land, buildings, and both mobile and fixed equipment.

The replacement of aging pipelines and water service connections throughout the District's system continued to
represent the majority of the $4.38 million additions to the District’s capital assets in 2024, the $3.88 million
additions in 2023, and the $4.99 million additions in 2022.

Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 3, Capital Assets, of the notes to the
basic financial statements.

Debt Administration

The District continues to meet its debt obligations under its 2012 Revenue Refunding bonds. Through scheduled
debt service payments, the principal on its collective debt was reduced by $110,000 during 2024, by $105,000
during 2023, and by $100,000 during 2022. The District’s total debt from its bond issuances now stands at
$1.21 million.

Subscription Liabilities were introduced in 2023 related to implementation of GASB 96. An initial liability was
recorded related to subscriptions in the amount of $106,700. As of December 31, 2024, the total combined value
of the subscription liability is $86,617.

Total compensated absences (long-term liability and current portion combined) are composed of leave hours
earned by employees that are payable upon termination or retirement and are valued at $0.56 million at the end
of 2024, remaining mostly unchanged from prior years balance.

The net liability for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) increased slightly in2024 compared to 2023, as a result
of the annual cost of these benefits exceeding the amounts paid for premiums, and changes in actuarial
assumptions. Additional information on the District’'s changes in net OPEB liability can be found in Note 9,
Postemployment Health Care Benefits, of the notes to the basic financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND FUTURE BUDGET CONSIDERATIONS
Focus on Long-Range Planning

CHWD has a long-standing tradition of planning and managing its long-term capital and operational needs and
accompanying financial planning. CHWD’s focus on long-range planning is exemplified by its water main master
planning, 1999 Master Plan that focused on water main replacement, Project 2030-Water Main Replacement
Program; Water Meter Replacement Study and Consortium-based Meter Replacement Asset Management
Program; maintaining a 10-year financial forecast as a driver for annual budgeting; and the use of
Strategic Planning, focusing on three-year goals and one-year objectives as a driver for annual budgeting.

Implementation of an Annual Budget Based on a 10-Year Budget Forecast
Given the significant capital and asset management-related one-time and ongoing expenses projected, CHWD
has developed and maintained a 10-year budget forecast or Financial Model. The Financial Model is updated

regularly with actual revenues and expenses, and serves as a key policy, operational capital and financial planning
tool as the District considers policy, operational, capital and budget options.

11



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2024

Reserve Policies and Special Funding

Each year, CHWD endeavors to transfer a portion of net revenue to both designated and undesignated reserves.
Placing ratepayer dollars in reserves ensures that CHWD can smooth-out its expenses and minimize its use of
debt financing, which can add significant expense, cause delays and complications, and reduce local control to
CHWD as it implements its Capital Improvement Program.

2025 Adopted Budget

The District continued to exercise fiscal restraint in spending for District operations. However, the adopted 2025
budget projected an overall increase of $2.5 million or 14.5% for the operations and maintenance expenses. The
2025 budget includes:

¢+ Maintaining the current level of services and programs for District customers.
% Updating the Water Master Plan (last update was in 1999).

* Funding the implementation of strategic planning items and special projects identified by the Board as
priorities for 2025.

%+ Increasing work/cost related to the preparation for the Project 2030 Water Main Replacement Plan

+» Contributing to reserves including an additional transfer of $1.0 million to the Water Main Replacement
Reserve in preparation for the implementation of the Project 2030 Water Main Replacement Plan, which will
substantially increase the amount of annual infrastructure replacement completed by the District.

A FY2025 Operating Budget Summary is included at the conclusion of this Management’s Discussion and
Analysis to provide an overview of the District's operating budget.

Total capital improvement expenditures budgeted for FY2025 are $18.3 million compared with $13.8 million in
FY2024. This amount includes $7.4 million in carry-over projects from prior years. The budget includes
approximately $8.2 million for completing construction of the District's seventh groundwater well (well #7) and
design and construction of the District’s eighth groundwater well (Well #8).

The District has been awarded $6.6 million in State and Federal grant funds towards the construction of Wells #7
and #8; however, as of the date this financial report is completed, the District hasn’t received any of the grant
funds yet. Though there are very few opportunities for non-ratepayer funding, the District continues to look for
outside funding opportunities whenever possible.

A 2025 Capital Improvement Budget Summary is included at the conclusion of this Management’s Discussion and
Analysis to provide an overview of the District’'s capital improvement budget.

A portion of the District's budget continues to be the repayment of long-term debt financing in the form of
Certificates of Participation originally issued in 2003 (refunded as Revenue Refunding Bonds in 2012). The annual
debt service for the 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds is budgeted at $170,788 for the bond principal and interest
payments for FY2025.

12



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2024

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 2025 ADOPTED BUDGET

2023 2024 2025
Actual Projected Adopted

Revenues
Water Sales $18,583,311 $20,718,816 $18,248,406
Connection and Other Fees 236,324 413,140 213,400
Project 2030 Designated Charge 1,331,779 1,388,039 2,257,294
Grant Revenue - - 5,137,000
Investment and Other Income 586,228 485,113 447,213
Total Revenues 20,737,643 23,005,107 26,303,313
Salaries and Benefits 6,395,696 6,494,857 7,737,430
Water Purchases 2,845,767 2,637,464 3,127,035
Other Operating Costs & Maintenance Costs 3,603,266 4,233,589 6,618,309
Debt Service 61,786 174,338 170,788
Transfers to Reserves 1,731,779 1,788,039 2,400,000
Total Expenses and Transfers 14,638,294 15,328,288 20,053,562
Operating Income before Capital Outlay 6,099,349 7,676,820 6,249,751
Capital Outlay $2,288,321 $6,251,130 $18,339,387

FY 2025 ADOPTED BUDGET

Reserved,
6.28%

Capital
mprovement
Program,
47.98%

13

Salaries & Benefits,
20.24%

Operations &
Maintenance,

25.50%



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2024

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTED CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET

2024 2025
Project # Project Title Adopted Adopted
Budget Budget
C15-104B Document Management System $ 64,639
C16-134  Auburn Blvd-Rusch Park Placer 538,021 $ 900,285
C20-107  Well #7 Design & Construction (Ella) 4,442 536 2,942,536
C22-040D SACOG AC Overlay Phase 1 55,000
C23-003  Fleet/Field Operations Equip 300,727
Facilities Improvements 9,548
C23-020 Groundwater Well Improvements 100,000
C23-040  Other City Parnerships 100,000
C23-041 Misc Infrastructure Projects 100,000
C23-103  Well #8 Highland Well 1,900,000 5,300,000
C23-104  Patton/Pardal/AlonDra/Perdez 1,010,000
C23-106  Admiral & Anchor 8-Inch 897,819
C24-003  Fleet & Field Operations Eqpm 330,000 40,000
C24-004  Technology Hardware & Software 55,000
C24-005  Facilities Improvements 108,000
C24-010  Annual Water Main Pipeline Rep 51,500 31,500
C24-011  Valve Replacement 120,000
C24-012  Water Service Connections 1,507,000 407,000
C24-013  Water Meter Replacement 125,000
C24-014  Fire Hydrants-Repl, Upgrades, 175,000
C24-020  Groundwater Well Improvement 200,000
C24-101 Minnesota Drive 727,000 670,066
C24-102  Fair Oaks Blvd at Leafcrest Wy 344,000 715,000
C24-103  Menke Way 103,000 103,000
Total Ongoing Projects $ 13,308,790 $ 11,164,387
C25-003  Annual Fleet & Field Operations 40,000
C25-004  Annual Technology Hardware & 100,000
C25-005  Annual Facilities Improvements 112,000
C25-010  Annual Water Main Pipeline 53,000
Replacement (Small)
C25-011 Annual Valve Replacements 35,000
C25-012  Annual Water Service connections 1,510,000
C25-013  Annual Water Meter Replacement 130,000
C25-014  Annual Fire Hydrants - Repl, 175,000
Upgrades, Lnfill, New
C25-020  Annual Groundwater well 200,000
Improvements
C25-040  Other City Partnerships 100,000
C25-041 Misc Infrastructure Projects 100,000
Total New Annual Projects $ $ 2,655,000
C25-XXX  Greenback Lane from Birdcage to 900,000
C25-XXX  Donnawood 100,000
C25-XXX  Corporation Yard and Administration 3,000,000
Facility Improvements (Plans,
Specifications, and Estimate)
C25-XXX  ERP System 400,000
C25-XXX  SCADA Upgrade 120,000
Total New Projects $ $ 4,520,000
FY2025 Totals $ 13,308,790 $ 18,339,387

14



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

15



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2024 and 2023

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments (Note 2)
Receivables:
Accounts receivable, net
Accrued interest receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other deposits

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent:

Non-depreciable/amortizable capital assets (Note 3)
Depreciable/amortizable capital assets, net (Note 3)

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension related (Noted 9)
OPERB related (Note 10)

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities:

Current:
Accounts payable
Retentions payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued interest payable
Deposits payable
Due to other governments
Compensated absences (Note 8)
Long-term debt (Note 5)

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent:
Compensated absences (Note 8)
Long-term debt (Note 5)
Net pension liability (Note 9)
Net OPEB liability (Note 10)

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred amount from refunding debt

Pension related (Note 9)
OPEB related (Note 10)

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2024 2023
$ 33,780,703 $ 29,435,050
3,566,811 3,294,746
281,188 267,094
803,134 666,341
735,814 578,904
39,167,650 34,242,135
7,122,794 4,890,653
62,369,119 62,915,871
69,491,913 67,806,524
108,659,563 102,048,659
1,918,709 2,537,266
408,902 507,563
2,327,611 3,044,829
576,761 668,345
- 31,058
234,701 207,375
28,057 29,671
431,877 368,074
740 -
174,273 213,910
121,977 120,274
1,568,386 1,638,707
385,316 424,953
1,269,911 1,393,746
6,077,953 6,173,494
1,268,135 1,238,321
9,001,315 9,230,514
10,569,701 10,869,221
9,936 18,572
73,188 402,283
377,661 436,421
460,785 857,276
68,125,815 66,242,874
31,830,873 27,124,117
$ 99,956,688 $ 93,366,991

17



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Operating Revenues:
Water sales
Connection and other fees

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:

Customer service, administration and general

Water purchases

Transmission and distribution
Pumping and well maintenance
Conservation

Depreciation and amortization

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment income

Miscellaneous income

Interest expense

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets

Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions
Contributions

Changes in Net Position
Net Position:

Beginning of Fiscal Year
End of Fiscal Year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

18

2024 2023
$ 21,621,835 $ 19,915,090
712,683 216,934
22,334,518 20,132,024
6,248,835 5,706,961
2,982,507 2,858,841
3,896,342 2,796,502
742,415 842,529
487,975 697,684
2,676,870 2,668,321
17,034,944 15,570,838
5,299,574 4,561,186
1,260,199 1,438,634
3,273 19,395
(39,106) (50,767)
2,603 21,674
1,226,969 1,428,936
6,526,543 5,990,122
63,154 243 443
6,589,697 6,233,565
93,366,991 87,133,426
$ 99,956,688 $ 93,366,091




CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services
Receipts from miscellaneous operating income
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Non-Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Receipts from miscellaneous non operating income
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Cash receipts from sales of capital assets
Proceeds from issuance of capital debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Interest payments on long-term debt

Net Cash Provided (Used) by

Capital Financing Activities:

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest earnings

Net cash provided by (Used) by
Investing Activities

Net Cash Flows
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

19

2024 2023
$ 22,095,198 $ 20,371,555
(14,255,386)  (12,265,832)
(276,286) (24,921)
740 18,070
7,564,266 8,098,872
3,273 -

3,273 -
(4,319,985) (3,634,992)
23,482 44,500
11,977 -
(129,375) (115,163)
(54,091) (66,892)
(4,467,992) (3,772,547)
1,246,106 1,252,844
1,246,106 1,252,844
4,345,653 5,579,169
29,435,050 23,855,881
$ 33,780,703 $ 29,435,050




CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 5299574 $ 4,561,186

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,676,870 2,668,321
Miscellaneous income - 18,070
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets and deferred outflows of resources:

Accounts Receivable (272,065) 228,271
Inventory (136,792) (120,104)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (156,910) 8,556
Increase (decrease) in liabilities and deferred inflows of resources:
Accounts payable (90,845) 50,549
Accrued payroll 27,326 54,043
Deposits payable 63,803 (6,420)
Retentions payable (31,058) 17,680
Compensated absences (79,273) 80,662
Deferred amount from refunding of debt
Net pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows 193,921 560,630
Net OPEB liability and related deferred inflows and outflows 69,715 (22,572)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by

Operating Activities $ 7564266 $ 8,098,872
Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Activities
Receipt of contributed assets $ 63,154 $ 243,443
Amortization of bond premiums 8,636 1,325
Amortization of deferred charges on refundings 13,371 13,370

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 20



NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

22



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1: REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity: The District was established on October 25, 1920 as an irrigation district under Division 11 of the
Act of Legislature of the State of California. The District constructs and maintains waterworks and supplies
domestic water in an area of approximately 12 square miles to over 20,000 connections in Sacramento and
Placer counties with an estimated population of 66,000. The District is governed by a Board of Directors
consisting of three directors elected by residents of the District. The accompanying basic financial statements
present the District and its component unit. The component unit discussed below is included in the District’'s
reporting entity because of the significance of its operational and financial relationship with the District.

The District has created the Citrus Heights Water District Financing Corporation (the Corporation) to provide
assistance to the District in the issuance of debt. Although legally separate from the District, the Corporation is
reported as if it were part of the primary government because it shares a common Board of Directors with the
District and its sole purpose is to provide financing to the District under the debt issuance documents of the
District. Debt issued by the Corporation is reflected as debt of the District in these financial statements. The
Corporation has no other transactions and does not issue separate financial statements.

Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting: The basic financial statements of the Citrus Heights Water District
(District) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The District is accounted for
as an enterprise fund and applies all applicable GASB pronouncements in its accounting and reporting. The
more significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below.

The District’'s resources are allocated to and accounted for in these basic financial statements as an
enterprise fund type of the proprietary fund group. The enterprise fund is used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body
is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where the governing body has
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for
capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other policies. Net position for the
enterprise fund represents the amount available for future operations.

Basis of Accounting: The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. The enterprise fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows associated
with the operation of this fund are included on the balance sheet. Net position is segregated into net investment
in capital assets, amounts restricted and amounts unrestricted. Enterprise fund type operating statements present
increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total position.

The District uses the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. When such funds are received they are recorded as
unearned revenue until earned. Earned but unbilled water services are accrued as revenue.

Water lines are constructed by private developers and then dedicated to the District, which is then responsible
for their future maintenance. These lines are recorded as capital contributions when they pass inspection by the
District, and the estimated costs are capitalized as donated pipelines.

Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that result from the ongoing principal
operations of the District. Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services. Nonoperating revenues
and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and investing types of activities
and result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

23



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE1: REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Fair Value Measurements: Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The District
categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value into three levels based on the extent to which inputs used in measuring fair value are observable in
the market.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 inputs are inputs — other than quoted prices included within level 1 — that are observable for an asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the fair value hierarchy,
the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents held include bank deposits and restricted and unrestricted investments in money market mutual funds
and LAIF.

Restricted Assets: Certain proceeds of the District’'s long-term debt are classified as restricted investments on the
balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable debt covenants.

Investments: Investments are stated at their fair value, which represents the quoted or stated market value.
Investments that are not traded on a market, such as investments in external pools, are valued based on the stated
fair value as represented by the external pool.

Inventory: Inventory consists primarily of materials used in the construction and maintenance of the water distribution
facilities and is valued on a first-in, first-out basis.

Prepaids: Prepaids consist primarily of insurance, maintenance agreements and other prepaid assets.

Capital Assets: Capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets, works of art and similar
items, and capital assets received in a service concession arrangement are reported at acquisition value rather
than fair value. Self-constructed assets are recorded based on the amount of direct labor, material, and
certain overhead charged to the asset construction. Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Description Useful Life

Pipeline and infrastructure 20-40 years
Equipment and machinery 5-10 years
Subscriptions 10 years
Buildings 15-40 years
Well improvements 40 years
Donated pipelines 40 years
Improvements 40 years

24



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1: REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Depreciation and amortization expense aggregated to $2,676,870 and $2,668,321 for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and is included with depreciation and amortization expense.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred. It is the District’s policy to capitalize all capital
assets with a cost of more than $5,000 for tangible personal property and $15,000 for infrastructure, building or
improvements. Costs of assets sold or retired (and the related amounts of accumulated depreciation) are
eliminated from the balance sheet in the year of sale or retirement, and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in
operations.

Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements:

The District is a subscriber for a noncancellable subscription of information technology services. The District
recognizes subscription liability and an intangible right-to-use subscription asset (subscription asset) in the financial
statements. The District recognizes subscription liabilities with an initial, individual value of $5,000 or more.

At the commencement of a subscription, the District initially measures the subscription liability at the present value
of payments expected to be made during the subscription term. Subsequently, the subscription liability is reduced
by the principal portion of subscription payments made. The subscription asset is initially measured as the initial
amount of the subscription liability, adjusted for subscription payments made at or before the subscription
commencement date, plus certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the subscription asset is amortized on a
straight-line basis over its useful life. Key estimates and judgments related to subscriptions include how the District
determines (1) the discount rate it uses to discount the expected subscription payments to present value,
(2) subscription term, and (3) subscription payments.

o The District uses the interest rate charged by the vendor as the discount rate. When the interest rate charged
by the vendor is not provided, the District generally uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate for subscriptions.

e The subscription term includes the noncancellable period of the subscription. Subscription payments included
in the measurement of the subscription liability are composed of fixed payments that the District is reasonably
certain to exercise.

The District monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its subscriptions and will
remeasure the subscription asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the
amount of the subscription liability.

Subscription assets are reported with other capital assets and subscription liabilities are reported with long-term
debt on the statement of net position.

Bond Premiums and Bond Issuance Costs: Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the lives of the
bonds. Long-term liabilities are reported net of the applicable bond premiums. Bond issuance costs are
recognized as an expense in the period incurred.

Deferred Amount from Refunding Debt: The difference between the reacquisition price of refunded debt and the
net carrying amount of the previously outstanding debt is deferred and reported as either a deferred outflow
or deferred inflow on the balance sheet. These amounts are amortized over the shorter of the term of the old debt
or the new debt.

Deferred Outflows: In addition to assets, the balance sheet reports a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense) until then.

25



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE1: REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Inflows: In addition to liabilities, the balance sheet reports a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition
of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time.

Compensated Absences: The District’s policy allows employees to accumulate earned but unused annual leave,
management leave and compensatory time-off which will be paid to employees upon separation from service
to the District. The cost of annual leave, management leave and compensatory time-off is recognized in the
period earned.

Upon death while employed by the District or retirement from the District, employees are paid one-third of their
accumulated sick leave time. This amount is also recognized in the period earned.

New GASB Pronouncements Effective during Fiscal Year

The following Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements were effective for the fiscal year
ended December 30, 2024:

1. GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences

The Statement amends the existing requirement to disclose the gross increases and decreases in liability for
compensated absences to allow governments to disclose only the net change in liability (as long as they identify it
as a net change). In addition, governments are no longer required to disclose which governmental funds typically
have been used to liquidate the liability for compensated absences

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of December 31 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

2024 2023
Cash and investments $ 33,780,703 $ 29,435,050

Cash and investments as of December 31 consisted of the following:

2024 2023
Cash on Hand $ 850 $ 850
Deposits with financial institutions 4,432,414 3,672,554
Investments 29,347,439 25,761,646
Total cash and investments $ 33,780,703 $ 29,435,050

26



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investment Policy: California statutes authorize districts to invest idle, surplus, or reserve funds in a variety of credit
instruments as provided for in the California Government Code, Section 53600. The table below identifies the
investment types that are authorized for the District by the California Government Code (or the District’s investment
policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table
does not address investments of debt proceeds held by the bond trustee that are governed by the provisions
of debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
District’s investment policy. During the year ended December 31, 2024, the District's permissible investments included
the following instruments:

Maximum Maximum

Maximum Percentage of Investment in One

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio* Issuer
Securities of the U.S. Govemment 5 Years 100% 100%
Registered State Warrants, Treasury Notes, or Bonds of the State of
California or other states in the United States 5 Years 25% 10%
Bonds, Notes, Warrants, or Other Evidences of Indebtedness of any
Local Agency within the State of California 5Years 25% 10%
Securities of U.S. Govemment Agencies and Instruments 5 Years 100% 35%
Commercial Paper 270 Days 25% 5%
Corporate or Medium-Term Notes 5 Years 30% 5%
Bonds of Supranationals (IBRD, IFC, IADB) 5 Years 30% 5%
Mortgage pass-Through and Asset-Backed Securities 5 Years 20% 5%
Non-Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1 Year 10% 5%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1 Year 10% 5%
Money Marktet Mutual Funds 2(A) 7 Eligible 20% 20%
Max Permitted by Max Permitted by

LAIF N/A State Treasurer State Treasurer
Collateralized Bank Deposits N/A 100% 50%
Bankers' Acceptances 180 Days 25% 5%
Joint Powers Authority Pool N/A N/A N/A

* Excluding amounts held by the bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code restrictions

The District complied with the provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’'s investment policy,
where more restrictive) pertaining to the types of investments held, the institutions in which deposits were made,
and the security requirements. The District will continue to monitor compliance with applicable statutes pertaining
to public deposits and investments.

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements: Investment of debt proceeds held by the bond trustee are governed
by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
District's investment policy. The Certificates of Participation debt agreements contain certain provisions that address
interest rate risk and credit risk, but not concentration of credit risk.

Maximum

Maximum Investment
Maximum Percentage in One
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio Issuer
Local Agency Investment Program None None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations None None None
U.S. Agency Securities None None None
Bankers' Acceptance 1 Year None None
Commercial Paper None None None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit None None None
Investment Agreements None None None
Repurchase Agreements None None None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None
LAIF N/A None None

27



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair Value Hierarchy: The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established
by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure
fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of the fair value of investments of the District as of
December 31, 2024:

Total

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:

Cash on Hand $ 850

Deposits with financial institutions 4,209,133

Money Market Mutual Fund 223,281
Cash in banks and on hand 4,433,264
Investments held at Fair Value

U.S. Treasury obligations 6,563,873

U.S. agency securities 9,076,355

Asset backed securities 1,308,201

Commercial paper 2,753,014

Municipal investments 1,286,504

Non-US government securities 2,136,096

Currency 428
Investments not subject to Fair Value Hierarchy

California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 55,918

California Asset Management Program (CAMP) 5,943,769
Total Cash and Investments $ 33,780,703

The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of the fair value of investments of the District as of
December 31, 2023:

Total

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:

Cash on Hand $ 850

Deposits with financial institutions 3,573,192

Money Market Mutual Fund 99,362
Cash in banks and on hand 3,673,404
Investments held at Fair Value

U.S. Treasury obligations 4,609,822

U.S. agency securities 6,974,239

Asset backed securities 1,647,117

Commercial paper 3,115,220

Municipal investments 1,256,217

Non-US government securities 255,575

Currency 14,262
Investments not subject to Fair Value Hierarchy

California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 2,152,135

California Asset Management Program (CAMP) 5,637,697
Total Cash and Investments $ 29,435,050

28



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its
fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways the District manages its exposure to interest rate
risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments, and by timing cash flows from
maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing, or coming close to maturity, evenly over time, as necessary
to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of
the District’'s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the
distribution of the District’'s investments by maturity for fiscal year ended December 31, 2024:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 Months 13 to 36 37 to 60

Investment Type Total or Less Months Months
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 6,563,873 $ 1,094,812 $ 2,292911 $ 3,176,150
U.S. agency securities 9,076,355 1,947,883 5,090,614 2,037,858
Asset backed securities 1,308,201 598,918 508,381 200,902
Commercial paper 2,753,014 704,982 1,601,790 446,242
Municipal investments 1,286,504 - 1,108,446 178,058
Money market mutual funds 223,281 223,281 - -
Non-US government securities 2,136,096 - - 2,136,096
Currency 428 428 - -
Local Agency Investment Fund 55,918 55,918 - -
California Asset Management Program 5,943,769 5,943,769 - -
Total $ 29,347,439 $ 10,569,991 $ 10,602,142 $ 8,175,306

The following is a summary of the District’s investments by maturity as of December 31, 2023:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 Months 13 to 36 37 to 60

Investment Type Total or Less Months Months
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 4609822 $ 1982131 § 1,416,537 $ 1,211,154
U.S. agency securities 6,974,239 1,525,462 4,204,857 1,243,920
Asset backed securities 1,647,117 - 621,135 1,025,982
Commercial paper 3,115,220 - 2,204,526 910,694
Municipal investments 1,256,217 - 283,607 972,610
Money market mutual funds 99,362 99,362 - -
Non-US government securities 255,575 - - 255,575
Currency 14,262 14,262 - -
Local Agency Investment Fund 2,152,135 2,152,135 - -
California Asset Management Program 5,637,697 5,637,697 - -
Total $ 25761646 $ 11,411,049 $ 8,730,662 $ 5,619,935

29



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit Risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government
Code, the District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment
type for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Moody's Rating as of Fiscal Year End

Minimum Exempt or

Investment Type Total Legal Rating Aaa Aa A Not Rated
U.S. Treasury obligations 6,563,873 N/A $ - 8 -3 - $ 6,563,873
U.S. agency securities 9,076,355 N/A - - - 9,076,355
Asset backed securities 1,308,201 A 1,308,201 - - -
Commercial paper 2,753,014 A 251,358 551,133 1,144,391 806,132
Municipal investments 1,286,504 Aa 496,904 603,306 186,294 -
Money market mutual funds 223,281 Aaa 223,281 - - -
Non-US government securities 2,136,096 N/A - - - 2,136,096
Currency 428 N/A - - - 428
Local Agency Investment Fund 55,918 N/A - - - 55,918
California Asset Management Program 5,943,769 N/A - - - 5,943,769
Total $ 29,347,439 $ 2279744 $ 1,154,439 $ 1,330,685 $ 24,582,571

The following is a summary of the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code,
the District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type
for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Moody's Rating as of Fiscal Year End

Minimum Exempt or

Investment Type Total Legal Rating Aaa Aa A Not Rated
U.S. Treasury obligations 4,609,822 Exempt $ - $ - $ - $ 4,609,822
U.S. agency securities 6,974,239 Exempt - - - 6,974,239
Asset backed securities 1,647,117 A 1,050,397 - - 596,720
Commercial paper 3,115,220 A - 1,164,155 1,951,065 -
Certificates of deposit (nonnegotiable) - Not Rated - - - -
Certificates of deposit (negotiable) - Not Rated - - - -
Repurchase agreements - A - - - -
Medium-term notes - A - - - -
Municipal investments 1,256,217 Aa 198,517 1,057,700 - -
Money market mutual funds 99,362 Aaa - - - 99,362
Mortgage pass-through securities - A - - - -
Non-US government securities 255,575 Exempt - - - 255,575
Currency 14,262 Exempt - - - 14,262
Local Agency Investment Fund 2,152,135 Not Rated - - - 2,152,135
California Asset Management Program 5,637,697 Not Rated - - - 5,637,697
Total $ 25,761,646 $ 1,248914 § 2,221,855 § 1,951,065 $ 20,339,812

Concentration of Credit Risk: The investment policy of the District limits the amount that can be invested in any
one issuer to the lesser of the amount stipulated by the California Government Code or 5% of total investments,
with the exception of U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. Agency Securities, and LAIF. There are no investments
in any one issuer (other than mutual funds and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total
District investments.

30



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the District will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Under California Government Code Section 53651,
depending on specific types of eligible securities, a bank must deposit eligible securities posted as collateral
with its Agent having a fair value of 105% to 150% of the District’'s cash on deposit. All of the District's deposits
are either insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized with pledged securities
held in the trust department of the financial institutions in the District’'s name.

Investment in LAIF: The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of
California. The District reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF. The balance
available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an
amortized cost basis. Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations,
mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, and floating rate
securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, and corporations. At
December 31, 2024 and 2023, these investments matured in an average of 217 and 230 days, respectively.

31



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Balance Adjusted Beginning Balance
December 31, 2023 Adjustments Balance Additions Deletions Transfers December 31, 2024
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,309,097 $ -8 2,309,097 § -8 -8 - 8 2,309,097
Right of ways 26,080 - 26,080 - - - 26,080
Construction in Progress 2,555,476 - 2,555,476 4,248,543 (2,016,402) 4,787,617
Total capital assets not being depreciated 4,890,653 - 4,890,653 4,248,543 - (2,016,402) 7,122,794
Capital assets being depreciated:
Improvements 1,378,114 - 1,378,114 114,910 - - 1,493,024
Pipelines and infrastructure 71,654,756 - 71,654,756 (14,345) 1,224,247 72,864,658
Equipment and machinery 4,929,201 - 4,929,201 6,743 (178,005) 792,155 5,550,094
Buildings and improvements 4,281,371 - 4,281,371 - - - 4,281,371
Well improvements 8,062,746 - 8,062,746 - - - 8,062,746
Donated Pipelines 21,834,152 - 21,834,152 - - 21,834,152
Subscriptions 106,700 106,700 12,942 - - 119,642
Total capital assets, being depreciated 112,247,040 - 112,247,040 134,595 (192,350) 2,016,402 114,205,687
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements (192,881) - (192,881) (34,079) - - (226,960)
Pipelines and infrastructure (28,756,998) - (28,756,998) (1,671,249) 10,408 - (30,417,839)
Equipment and machinery (3,700,835) - (3,700,835) (237,517) 161,063 - (3,777,289)
Buildings and improvements (1,447,340) - (1,447,340) (102,578) - - (1,549,918)
Well improvements (2,786,098) - (2,786,098) (201,195) - - (2,987,293)
Donated Pipelines (12,425,825) - (12,425,825) (415,718) - - (12,841,543)
Subscriptions (21,192) - (21,192) (14,534) - - (35,726)
Total accumulated depreciation (49,331,169) - (49,331,169) (2,676,870) 171,471 - (51,836,568)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 62,915,871 - 62,915,871 (2,542,275) (20,879) 2,016,402 62,369,119
Capital assets, net $ 67,806,524 $ - 8 67,806,524 $ 1,706,268  $ (20,879) § - 3 69,491,913
Balance Adjusted Beginning Balance
December 31, 2022 Adjustments Balance Additions Deletions Transfers December 31, 2023
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,309,097 $ - $ 2,309,097 $ - $ - $ - $ 2,309,097
Right of ways 26,080 - 26,080 - - - 26,080
Construction in Progress 1,255,221 - 1,255,221 3,634,992 - (2,334,737) 2,555,476
Total capital assets not being depreciated/amortized 3,590,398 - 3,590,398 3,634,992 - (2,334,737) 4,890,653
Capital assets being depreciated/amortized:
Improvements 1,275,136 - 1,275,136 - - 102,978 1,378,114
Pipelines and infrastructure 69,906,810 - 69,906,810 - (150,113) 1,898,059 71,654,756
Equipment and machinery 4,803,910 - 4,803,910 - (93,409) 218,700 4,929,201
Buildings and improvements 4,281,371 - 4,281,371 - - - 4,281,371
Well improvements 7,947,746 - 7,947,746 - - 115,000 8,062,746
Donated Pipelines 21,637,046 - 21,637,046 243,443 (46,337) - 21,834,152
Subscription - 106,700 * 106,700 - - - 106,700
Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized 109,852,019 106,700 109,958,719 243,443 (289,859) 2,334,737 112,247,040
Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for:
Improvements (161,402) - (161,402) (31,479) - - (192,881)
Pipelines and infrastructure (27,247,327) - (27,247,327) (1,637,627) 127,956 - (28,756,998)
Equipment and machinery (3,526,614) - (3,526,614) (267,630) 93,409 - (3,700,835)
Buildings and improvements (1,344,761) - (1,344,761) (102,579) - - (1,447,340)
Well improvements (2,587,538) - (2,587,538) (198,560) - - (2,786,098)
Donated Pipelines (12,051,717) - (12,051,717) (419,776) 45,668 - (12,425,825)
Subscription - (10,522) * (10,522) (10,670) - - (21,192)
Total accumulated depreciation/amortization (46,919,359) (10,522) (46,929,881) (2,668,321) 267,033 - (49,331,169)
Total capital assets being depreciated/amortized, net 62,932,660 96,178 63,028,838 (2,424,878) (22,826) 2,334,737 62,915,871
Capital assets, net _§ 66,523,058 $ 96,178 $ 66,619,236 $ 1,210,114 $ (22,826) § - $ 67,806,524

*Implementation of GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

Capacity Entitlements: From 1993 through 1998, the District participated with four other water agencies in a
cooperative transmission pipeline project for the construction of additional transmission pipeline facilities.
The District's share of these pipeline costs totaled $5,636,711. The Capacity Entitlements asset represents
the capacity rights the District has purchased in the cooperative transmission pipeline project owned by
San Juan Water District. The asset is being amortized over the pipeline’s estimated useful life of forty years.

32



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 4: SUBSCRIPTION-BASED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ARRANGEMENTS

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 96 in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. The primary
objective of this statement is to enhance the relevance and consistency of information about governments'
subscription based-information technology arrangement (SBITA) activities. This statement establishes a single
model for SBITA accounting based on the principle that SBITAs are financings of the right to use an underlying
asset. Under this Statement, a subscriber is required to recognize a subscription liability and an intangible
right-to-use subscription asset. For additional information, refer to the disclosures below.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, Citrus Heights Water District, CA had 1 active subscription. The subscription
has payments that range from $12,917 to $12,917 and interest rates that range from 1.0850% to 1.0850%. As of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, the total combined value of the subscription liability is $86,617 and $85,379,
respectively. The combined value of the right to use asset, as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 of $119,642 and
$106,700, respectively with accumulated amortization of $35,726 and $21,192 respectively is included within the
Subscription Class activities table found below. The subscriptions had no Variable Payments and no Other
Payments, not included in the Subscription Liability, within the Fiscal Year.

Amount of subscription asset by subscription type for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023:

Amount of 2024 2023
SBITA Capital Accumulated Accumulated
Subscription Type Assets Amortization Amortization
Software as a service $ 119,642 $ 35726 $ 21,192

Subscription principal and interest requirements to maturity:

Fiscal Year Ending

December 31, Principal Interest
2025 $ 11,977  § 940
2026 12,107 810
2027 12,238 678
2028 12,371 546
2029 12,505 411

2030-2032 25,419 414
Total $ 86,617 $ 3,799

NOTE 5: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities consist of the following:

2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds: In April 2012, the District issued $2,275,000 of Revenue Refunding Bonds
with interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.25%. These 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds were issued to retire
the 2003 Certificates of Participation, which were issued to finance the cost of certain capital improvements to
the District’'s water system. The District is required to collect rates and charges from its water system that will be
sufficient to yield net revenues equal to 110% of debt service payments on any future debt issued, and to deposit
the net revenues in a revenue fund pledged for such future debt service payments. Annual principal payments,
ranging from $70,000 to $160,000 are due on February 1 through February 1, 2033, and semi-annual interest
payments, ranging from $4,200 to $48,600 are due on February 1 and August 1, through February 1, 2033.

33



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 5: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Changes in the District’s long-term liabilities during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was as
follows:

Balance Adjusted Beginning Balance
December 31, 2023 Adjustments Balance Additions Retirements December 31, 2024 Current Portion
2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds
3-5.25% due 2-1-33 $ 1,315,000 -3 1,315,000 - $ 110,000 $ 1,205,000 $ 110,000
Unamortized premium on 2012 Bonds 113,641 - 113,641 - 13,370 100,271 -
Deferred amount on refunding of 2012 Bonds 18,572 - 18,572 - 8,636 9,936 -
Subscription 85,379 - 85,379 11,977 10,739 86,617 11,977
Total Long-Term Liabilities 1,532,592 - 1,532,592 11,977 142,745 1,401,824 121,977
Balance Adjusted Beginning Balance
December 31, 2022 Adjustments Balance Additions Retirements December 31, 2023 Current Portion
2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds
3-5.25% due 2-1-33 $ 1,420,000 - $ 1,420,000 - $ 105,000 $ 1,315,000 $ 110,000
Unamortized premium on 2012 Bonds 127,011 - 127,011 - 13,370 113,641 -
Deferred amount on refunding of 2012 Bonds 19,987 - 19,987 - 1,415 18,572 -
Subscription * - 95,542 95,542 - 10,163 85,379 10,274
Total Long-Term Liabilities 1,566,998 95,542 1,662,540 - 129,948 1,532,592 120,274

*Implementation of GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

The annual requirements to amortize the outstanding debt related to the 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds as of
December 31, 2024 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds
December 31, Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 110,000 $ 60,788 $ 170,788
2026 115,000 57,488 172,488
2027 120,000 54,188 174,188
2028 130,000 45,150 175,150
2029-2033 730,000 118,912 848,912
Total $ 1,205,000 $ 336,526 $ 1,541,526

Pledged Revenue: The District pledged future water system revenues, net of specified expenses, to repay the
2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds in an original amount of $2,275,000. Proceeds of the Revenue Refunding
Bonds were used to refund the 2003 Certificates of Participation to finance capital improvements to the
District’s water system. The Revenue Refunding Bonds are payable solely from water customer net revenues
and are payable through February 2033. Annual principal and interest payments on the Bonds are expected
to require less than 80% of net revenues. Total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the
Revenue Refunding Bonds was $1,541,526 and $1,715,614 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Total principal and interest paid on all debt payable from net revenues was $174,088 and $174,338 and the total
water system net revenues were $7,605,419 and $6,162,409 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the District’s net revenues were 5,600% and 3,540% of debt service
payments, respectively.

Events of Default: The 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds from direct borrowings related to business-type activities,
contain events of default that declare the principal of all of the 2012 bonds then outstanding and the interest
accrued thereon to be due and payable immediately as specified in the terms of the agreement if any of the
following conditions occur: default on debt service payments; the failure of the District to observe or perform the
conditions, covenants, or agreement terms of the debt; bankruptcy filing by the District; or if any court or competent
jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the District. There were no such events occurred during the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2024.

34



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 6: ARBITRAGE REBATE LIABILITY

Section 148(f) of the Internal Revenue Code requires issuers of tax-exempt state and local bonds to remit to the
federal government amounts equal to (a) the excess of the actual amounts earned on all “Nonpurpose
Investments” allocable to “Gross Proceeds” of an issue of municipal obligations less the amount that would
have been earned if the investments bore a rate equal to the amount that would have been earned if the
investments bore a rate equal to the yield on the issue, plus (b) all income attributable to the excess. Issuers
must make rebate payments at least once every five years and upon final retirement or redemption of the bonds.
There was no arbitrage liability at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

NOTE 7: NET POSITION

Designations: Designations of unrestricted net position may be imposed by the Board of Directors to reflect
future spending plans or concerns about the availability of future resources. Designations may be modified,
amended or removed by Board action.

The designations are for the following:

Designated for rate stabilization represents the amount to be used to ensure financial and customer rate stability
in responding to certain conditions.

Designated for operating reserve is maintained for operating funds collected in advance for the following year,
accrued leave reserve, self-insurance reserve, unanticipated operating expenses, unanticipated economic
shortfall, and unallocated funds.

Designated for debt services reserve represents amounts set aside for use in maintaining debt coverage ratios
in accordance with bond covenants or other agreements or requirements associated with the issuance of
debt by the District.

Designated for capital improvement reserve represents amounts set aside for use in evaluating and
constructing new capital facilities to benefit existing District customers. This reserve had a negative balance
in past years due to large capital expenditures, including the meter retrofit program and well construction.

Designated for fleet equipment reserve represents amounts set aside to replace fleet equipment at the end of its
useful life.

Designated for employment-related benefits reserve represents amounts set aside to pay the costs of
employment-related benefits for existing and retired District employees.

Designated for water meter replacement reserve represents amounts set aside for use in evaluating,
designing, and replacing or rehabilitating capital facilities pertaining to water meters to benefit existing District
customers.

Designated for water supply reserve represents amounts set aside for evaluating, acquiring, and constructing
capital facilities related to water supply, such as groundwater production wells, aquifer storage and recovery
wells, surface water projects, recycled/reclaimed water projects, and land and right-of-way acquisition.

Designated for water main replacement reserve represents amounts set aside for evaluating, planning,
designing, constructing, replacing or rehabilitating capital facilities to benefit District customers.

Designated for water efficiency reserve represents amounts set aside for use in a water supply shortage, water
supply interruption, Federal/State/Regional/Local mandates, or other programmatic needs.

35



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 8: COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The following is a summary of changes in the District's compensated absences for the year ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023:

December 31, 2024 Net Change December 31, 2024 Current Portion
District Total $ 638,863 $ (79,274) $ 559,589 $ 174,273

December 31, 2023 Net Change December 31, 2024 Current Portion
District Total $ 558,201 $ 80,662 $ 638,863 $ 213,910

NOTE 9: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions,
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plans and additions to/deductions from
the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
CalPERS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported
at fair value.

A. General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Description and Summary of Balances by Plan — All qualified permanent and probationary employees are
eligible to participate in the District's Miscellaneous (all other) Employee Pension Rate Plan. The District's
Miscellaneous Rate Plan is part of the public agency cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
(PERF C), which is administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).
PERF C consists of a miscellaneous pool and a safety pool (also referred to as “risk pools”), which are comprised
of individual employer miscellaneous and safety rate plans, respectively. Individual employers may sponsor
more than one miscellaneous and safety rate plan. The employer participates in one cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan regardless of the number of rate plans the employer sponsors.
The District sponsors one rate plan (miscellaneous).

Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and District resolution. CalPERS issues publicly
available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Below is a summary of the deferred outflows of resources, net pension liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources
by Plan for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023:

Net Pension
Liability/
Propotionate Share
Deferred Outflows of Net Pension Deferred Inflows of
As of December 31, 2024 of Resources Liability Resources
Miscellaneous $ 1,918,709  § (6,077,953) $ (73,188)
Net Pension
Liability/
Propotionate Share
Deferred Outflows of Net Pension Deferred Inflows of
As of December 31, 2023 of Resources Liability Resources
Miscellaneous $ 2,537,266  $ (6,173,494) $ (402,283)

36



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 9: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Benefits Provided — CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. All members are eligible for
non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments
for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. The Pension Reform Act of
2013 (PEPRA), Assembly Bill 340, is applicable to employees new to CalPERS and hired after
December 31, 2012.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at December 31, 2024, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous

Tier 1 Tier 2 PEPRA

Prior to Prior to On or after January
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years senice 5 years senice 5 years senice
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 63 50 - 63 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.43% to 2.42% 1.43% to 2.42% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 6.9% 6.9% 7.8%
Required employer contribution rates 12.5% 11.8% 7.7%

Beginning in fiscal year 2017, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the cost-sharing plan as a
percentage of payroll for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar amount for
contributions toward the unfunded liability and side fund. The dollar amounts are billed on a monthly basis. The
District’s required contribution for the unfunded liability was $662,667 in fiscal year 2024.

Contributions — Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective
on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually
on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount
necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially
determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

For the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 the District’s contributions to the Plan were as follows:

Miscellaneous

As of December 31, 2024 Tier 1 Tier 2 PEPRA

Contributions - employer $ 524,378  $ 8,065 $ 2,706
Miscellaneous

As of December 31, 2023 Tier 1 Tier 2 PEPRA

Contributions - employer $ 470,187 $ 6,175 $ 4,097

37



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 9: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

As of December 31, 2024, the District reported $6,077,953 in net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of
the net pension liability of the Plan.

The District's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2024, and the total pension liability for the
Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023
rolled forward to June 30, 2024 using standard update procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative
to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 was as follows:

As of December 31, 2024 Miscellaneous

Proportion - June 30, 2023 0.12346%
Proportion - June 30, 2024 0.12567%
Change - Increase (Decrease) -0.00221%

As of December 31, 2023 Miscellaneous

Proportion - June 30, 2022 0.12247%
Proportion - June 30, 2023 0.12346%
Change - Increase (Decrease) -0.00099%

For the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $277,926 and
$1,098,770, respectively. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows of

As of December 31, 2024 of Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 770,256 $ -
Differences between actual and expected experience 525,495 (20,504)
Changes in assumptions 156,216 -
Changes in employer's proportion and differences between 70,360 -

the employer's contributions and the employer's

proportionate share of contributions 46,482 (52,684)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments 349,900 -

Total $ 1,918,709 $ (73,188)

38




CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 9: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of

As of December 31, 2023 of Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 662,667 $ -
Differences between actual and expected experience 315,375 (48,922)
Changes in assumptions 372,722 -
Changes in employer's proportion and differences between

the employer's contributions and the employer's

proportionate share of contributions 186,958 (353,361)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments 999,544 -

Total $ 2,537,266 $ (402,283)

The $770,256 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
December 31, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Fiscal year ended Outflows/(Inflows)
December 30, of Resources
2025 $ 373,623
2026 797,675
2027 23,874
2028 (119,907)
Total $ 1,075,265

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The following
presents the District’'s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated using the discount
rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’'s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were

calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1- percentage point higher than the current
rate:

For December 31, 2024 Miscellaneous

1% Decrease 5.90%
Net Pension Liability $ (9,837,787)
Current Discount Rate 6.90%
Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ (6,077,953)
1% Increase 7.90%
Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ (2,983,056)
For December 31, 2023 Miscellaneous

1% Decrease 5.90%
Net Pension Liability $ (9,708,569)
Current Discount Rate 6.90%
Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ (6,173,494)
1% Increase 7.90%
Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ (3,263,824)

39



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 9: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions — For the measurement period ended June 30, 2024, the total pension liabilities were
determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2023 total pension liability based on the following actuarial methods and
assumptions:

Miscellaneous

Valuation Date June 30, 2023
Measurement Date June 30, 2024
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Amortization
Discount Rate 6.90%
Inflation 2.30%
Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Senice
Mortality(1) Derived using CalPers Membership Data
for all Funds

The abowve actuarial assumptions
were based upon the following
experience study periods: 2021
Investment Rate of Return 6.90%
Contract COLA up to 2.30% until
PPPA(2) floor on purchasing power
Post Retirement Benefit Increase applies, 2.30% thereafter

' CalPERS developed the mortality table used based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 15
years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale MP—2016. For more details on this
table, please refer to the 2021 experience study report.

2 Purchasing Power Protection Allowance (PPPA) is a benefit designed to restore the original
purchasing power of CalPERS retirees to a predetermined limit.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the results of a

December 2021 actuarial experience study. Further details of the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS
website.

40



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 9: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the Plan was 6.90%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate for the Plan assumed that contributions from all plan members
in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF) will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those
assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long- term expected rate of return on plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows were developed
assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in
all future years. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns
were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11- 60 years) using a building-block
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits
was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using
both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent
rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the expected real rate of return by asset class.

Assumed
Asset
Asset Class Allocation Real Return " 2
Global equity-cap-weighted 30.00% 4.54%
Global equity-non-cap-weighted 12.00% 3.84%
Private equity 13.00% 7.28%
Treasury 5.00% 0.27%
Mortgage-backed securities 5.00% 0.50%
Investment grade corporates 10.00% 1.56%
High yield 5.00% 2.27%
Emerging market debt 5.00% 2.48%
Private debt 5.00% 3.57%
Real assets 15.00% 3.21%
Leverage -5.00% -0.59%

' An expected inflation of 2.30% used for this period.
2 Figures are based on the 2021-22 Asset Liability Management stud

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

41



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 10: POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

A. General Information about the District’s Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Plan

Plan Description — The District provides post-employment healthcare benefits for certain groups of employees
that retire from the District, under the Retiree Healthcare Plan (OPEB Plan), an agent multiple-employer plan
administered by the District. The OPEB Plan provides benefits for all permanent, full-time employees of the
District. The OPEB Plan’s assets are held in trust with the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust Fund
(CERBT), an agent multiple-employer Section 115 trust fund plan administered by California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating
public employers within the State of California. Benefit provisions are established through District policy and
may be amended through action of the District's Board of Directors. In order to qualify for participation in the
OPEB Plan, employees must meet three conditions: (1) completion of 20 years of service with the District;

(2) retirement from the District; and (3) employed with the District by January 30, 2019.

Benefits Provided — The following is a summary of Plan benefits by employee group as of December 31, 2023:

Hired before January 31, 2019

Retired from District between June 3, 1992 and

March 19, 1996 Retired from District after March 19, 1996 Hired After January 30, 2019
20+ Years of Senice Health insurance provided to employee at District Maximum mgnthly reimbursement of
expense $377.00 to retiree, spouse/dependents.

Health insurance provided to retiree, and
spouse/dependents at the time of retirement.
25+ Years of Senice If no spouse/dependents, or if retiree does not wish
to cover spouse/dependents, retiree may select
benefit of 30+ years of senice.

Health, dental, vision insurance provided at District
30+ Years of Senice

expense for spouse/dependents at time of

Maximum monthly reimbursement of
$422.00 to retiree, spouse/dependents.

expense for retiree. Maximum monthly reimbursement of
Health and dental insurance provided at District $472.00 to retiree, spouse/dependents.

Employees hired after
January 30, 2019 are not
eligible to receive any benefit
under the OPEB plan.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the District’s contributions to the OPEB Plan were $170,520

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms — Membership in the OPEB Plan consisted of the following at the census

date of December 31, 2022:

Inactive Employees or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits
Inactive Employees Entitled to but not yet Receiving Benefits
Active Employees

Total

42

19

22
41



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 10: POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

B. Net OPEB Liability

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — The District's net OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2023, and
the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated
December 31, 2022 to determine the total OPEB liability as of December 31, 2024, based on the following actuarial
methods and assumptions:

Actuarial Assumptions

Valuation Date December 31, 2022
Measurement Date December 31, 2023
Actuarial Cost Method Entry - Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 5.87%

Inflation 2.30%

Payroll Growth 2.80%

Healthcare Trend 6.80%, trending down to 4.14%

CalPers OPEB Assumption Model, dated
Mortality Rate November 17, 2021

The underlying mortality assumptions were based on the CalPERS OPEB Assumption Model, dated
November 17, 2021, and all other actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2022 valuation were based
on the results of a December 31, 2022 actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2022 to
December 31, 2022.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Asset Class Target Allocation Year
Global Equity 49.00% 6.80%
Fixed Income 23.00% 3.70%
TIPS 5.00% 2.80%
Commodities 3.00% 3.40%
REITs 20.00% 6.00%

Total 100.00%

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.87%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that District contributions will be made at rates equal to the
actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees
and beneficiaries. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

43



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 10: POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

C. Changes in Net OPEB Liability

The changes in the net OPEB liability are as follows:

Balance at December 31, 2023

Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period:
Senice Cost
Interest on the total OPEB liability
Changes in benefit terms

Difference between expected and actual experience

Changes in assumptions
Contributions from the employer*
Net investment income
Administrative Expenses
Benefit payments and refunds
Other changes

Net changes

Balance at December 31, 2024

Balance at December 31, 2022

Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period:
Senice Cost
Interest on the total OPEB liability
Changes in benefit terms

Difference between expected and actual experience

Changes in assumptions
Contributions from the employer*
Net investment income
Administrative Expenses
Benefit payments and refunds
Other changes

Net changes

Balance at December 31, 2023

Increase (Decrease)

Net OPEB
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Liability/(Asset)
Liability (a) Position (b) (a) - (b)

$ 1,809,212 $ 570,891 $ 1,238,321
42,248 - 42,248

107,097 - 107,097

1,027 - 1,027
- 53,972 (53,972)
- 66,878 (66,878)

- (292) 292

(53,972) (53,972) -

96,400 66,586 29,814

$ 1,905,612 $ 637,477 $ 1,268,135

Increase (Decrease)
Net OPEB
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Liability/(Asset)
Liability (a) Position (b) (a) - (b)

$ 2,062,623 $ 532,965 $ 1,529,658
44,622 - 44,622

122,099 - 122,099

(207,360) - (207,360)

(158,406) - (158,406)

- (97,111) 97,111

- 189,666 (189,666)

- (263) 263

(54,366) (54,366) -
(253,411) 37,926 (291,337)

$ 1,809,212 $ 570,891 $ 1,238,321

44



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 10: POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates — The
following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.87%) or 1- percentage-point higher
(6.87%) than the current discount rate:

Plan's Net OPEB Liability - 2024

Discount Rate 1% Current Discount Discount
(4.87%) Rate (5.87%) Rate1% (6.87%)
$ 1,578,301 $ 1,268,135 $ 1,015,997
Plan's Net OPEB Liability - 2023
Discount Rate -1% Current Discount Discount
(4.87%) Rate (5.87%) Rate1% (6.87%)
$ 1,537,747 $ 1,238,321 $ 995,480

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the Districts net OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (6.0% to 4.0%) or
1-percentage-point higher (8.0% to 6.0%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Plan's Net OPEB Liability - 2024

Health Care
Health Care Cost Health Care Cost Cost Trend Rate
Trend Rate 1% Trend Rates +1%
$ 970,153 $ 1,268,135 $ 1,647,269

Plan's Net OPEB Liability - 2023

Health Care
Health Care Cost Health Care Cost Cost Trend Rate
Trend Rate -1% Trend Rates +1%
$ 966,191 $ 1,238,321 $ 1,583,884

D. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the District recognized OPEB expense of $123,283 and $148,355,
respectively. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the District reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of

As of December 31, 2024 Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 16,138 $ (171,710)
Changes in assumptions 195,423 (205,951)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on OPEB plan investments 26,821 -
Employer contributions made subsequent to the

measurement date 170,520 -

Total $ 408,902 $ (377,661)

45



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 10: POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of

As of December 31, 2023 Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 19,578 $ (197,047)
Changes in assumptions 242,363 (239,374)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on OPEB plan investments 74,698 -
Employer contributions made subsequent to the

measurement date 170,924 -

Total $ 507,563 $ (436,421)

$170,520 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will
be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the year ended December 31, 2024. Other amounts reported
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as
pension expense as follows:

Year Ended

December 31, Annual Amortization
2025 $ 240
2026 4,696
2027 8,450
2028 (19,390)
2029 (48,644)
Thereafter (84,631)

E. Payable to the OPEB Plan

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the District reported a payable of $0 for the outstanding amount of contributions to
the OPEB plan required for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

NOTE 11: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Various claims have been filed against the District. In the opinion of the District’'s management and legal counsel,
the claims will not have a material impact on the basic financial statements.

The District has no capital project commitments as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.
NOTE 12: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

During 2024 and 2023, the District purchased 94.01% and 84.89%, respectively, of its water supply from the
San Juan Water District (SJWD). Total purchases for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was
$2,982,507 and $2,858,841, respectively. In addition, the District owns water transmission capacity entitlements
through the cooperative transmission pipeline project owned and operated by SJWD.

NOTE 13: INSURANCE
The District participates in the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority
(ACWA/JPIA) a public entity risk pool of California water agencies, for general and auto liability, public officials

liability, property damage, fidelity insurance and workers compensation liability. ACWA/JPIA provides insurance
through the pool up to a certain level, beyond which group purchased commercial excess insurance is obtained.

46



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 13: INSURANCE (CONTINUED)

The District pays an annual premium to ACWA/JPIA that includes its pro-rata share of excess insurance
premiums, charges for the pooled risk, claims adjusting and legal costs, and administrative and other costs to
operate the ACWA/JPIA. The District’s deductibles and maximum coverage are as follows:

Type of Cowverage (Deductible) ACWA/JIPA Deductible
General and Auto Liability
(Includes Public Officials Liability) $55,000,000 None
Cyber Liability 3,000,000 None
Property Damage* 150,000,000 $2,500-$100,000
Crime 100,000 1,000
Workers Comensation Liability 2,000,000 None

* The District has additional $500,000,000 in property damage coverage \via

ACWA/JPIA through the commercial insurance policy

47



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

48



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

49



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
As of December 31, for the Last Ten Years

Measurement Date 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018

Plan Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.12216% 0.11962% 0.11866% 0.11673%
Plan Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $ 3,351,422 $ 4,155,588 $ 4,677,711 $ 4,399,273
Plan Covered Payroll $ 2,289,027 $ 2,270,540 $ 2,606,536 $ 2,941,557

Plan Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as
Percentage of Covered Payroll 146.41% 183.02% 179.46% 149.56%

The Pension Plan's (PERF-C) Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of the Total Pension Liability 78.40% 74.06% 73.31% 75.26%

Notes to Schedule:
Benefit Changes: There were no changes to the benefit terms that applied to all members of the Public Agency Pool. However, individual employers in
the Plan may have provided a benefit improvement to their employees by granting Two Years Additional Service Credit to members retiring during a
specified period (also known as “Golden Handshakes”).

Changes of Assumptions: There were no assumption changes in 2024. Effective with the June 30, 2023 valuation date

50



6/30/2019 6/30/2020 6/30/2021 6/30/2022 6/30/2023 6/30/2024

0.04500% 0.04483% 0.04318% 0.12247% 0.12381% 0.12567%
$ 4,611,042  $ 4,877,315 § 2,335,284  $ 5,730,637  § 6,173,494  § 6,077,953

$ 3,442,952 § 3,399,842 § 3,513,707  § 1,605,786  $ 1,776,124  § 4,355,031

133.93% 143.46% 66.46% 356.87% 347.58% 139.56%

75.26% 75.10% 88.29% 76.90% 76.90% 76.90%

51



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan
Schedule of Plan Contributions

As of December 31, for the Last Ten Years (1)

2016 2017 2018 2019
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 504,996 $ 584,230 $ 650,169 % 649,707
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (505,031) (584,230) (650,169) (699,672)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ (35) $ -3 -3 (49,965)

Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

$ 2,362,614 $ 1,303,268 $ 1,470,779 $ 1,721,476

21.38% 44.83% 44.21% 40.64%

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of implementation,

therefore only nine years are shown.
Note to Schedule:

Valuation Date:

June 30, 2023

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization method

Asset valuation method

Inflation

Payroll Growth

Projected Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return
Retirement Age

Mortality

Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Level percentage of pay, a summary of the current policy is provided in the table below:

Source
(Gain)/Loss Assumption/
Non- Method Benefit Golden
Investment | investment| Change Change Handshake

Amortization Period 20 Years 20 Years 20 Years 20 Years 5Years
Escalation Rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Ramp Up 5 0 0 0 0
Ramp Down 0 0 0 0 0

The Actuarial Value of Assets is set equal to the Market Value of Assets. Asset values include
accounts receivable.

2.30%

2.75%

Varies by Entry Age and Service

6.90% (net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses, includes

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation use the results of the 2021
CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions, including updates to salary
increases, mortality, and retirement rates, as a basis. Employers should refer to CalPERS’ Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, to obtain the required
supplementary information for proper financial reporting.

CalPERS developed the mortality table used based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes
15 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2016. For more details
on this table, please refer to the 2021 experience study report.

52



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
695,780 $ 909,262 $ 816,336  $ 815,884 § 770,256

(695,780) (909,262) (816,336) (815,884) (770,256)

- 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 -
3399842 $ 3237486 $ 1605786 $ 1776124 $ 4,355,031

20.47% 28.09% 50.84% 45.94% 17.69%

53



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB liability and Related Ratios
As of December 31, For the Last Ten Years (1)

Measurement Date

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost

Interest on the total OPEB liability
Change in benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experiences
Changes in assumptions

Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contribution - employer

Net investment income

Benefit payments

Other miscellaneous income/(expense)
Administrative expense

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

Net OPEB Liability - ending (a) - (b)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability
Covered Payroll

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

12/31/2017 12/31/2018 12/31/2019
25905 $ 26682 $ 37,106
83,640 87,918 96,977

- 41,338 (17,427)

- 23,239 -

(41,228) (42,527) (46,768)
68,317 136,650 69,888
1,332,951 1,401,268 1,537,918
1,401,268 1,537,918 1,607,806
41,228 122,527 128,540

- (1,658) 24,089

(41,228) (42,527) (46,768)

] (6) (83)

- 78,336 105,778

: - 78,336

- 78,336 184,114
1,401,268 _$ 1,459,582 _$ 1,423,692
0.00% 5.09% 11.45%
2915351 $ 3278242 $ 3,658,217
48.07% 44.52% 38.92%

(1) Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of
implementation. Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

54



12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2022 12/31/2023
$ 47,435 $ 50,011 $ 44622 $ 42,248
102,103 114,224 122,099 107,097
(572) - - -
(1,841) (1,948) (207,360) 1,027
364,838 (130,213) (158,406) -
(43,184) (46,036) (54,366) (53,972)
468,779 (13,962) (253,411) 96,400
1,607,806 2,076,585 2,062,623 1,809,212
2,076,585 2,062,623 1,809,212 1,905,612
145,837 189,734 189,666 53,972
39,073 40,575 (97,111) 66,878
(43,184) (46,036) (54,366) (53,972)
23,195 - - -
(127) (216) (263) (292)
164,794 184,057 37,926 66,586
184,114 348,908 532,965 570,891
348,908 532,965 570,891 637,477
$ 1,727,677 _$ 1,529,658 $ 1,238,321 _$ 1,268,135
16.80% 25.84% 31.55% 33.45%
$ 3,677,546 § 3,946,896 $ 2,740,450 $ 2,740,450
46.98% 38.76% 45.19% 46.27%

55



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Schedule of OPEB Contributions

As of December 31, for the Last Ten Years (1)

Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contributions

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Covered Payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

2018 2019 2020
122,000 $ 130,652 $ 170,121
(122,527) (128,530) (146,814)
(527) % 2122 $ 23,307
3,278,242 $ 3,658,217 $ 3,677,546
3.74% 3.51% 3.99%

(1) Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of
implementation. Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

Notes to Schedule:

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method
Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method
Discount Rate

General Inflation

Salary Increases
Medical Trend

Mortality
Mortality Improvement

December 31. 2022

Entry Age Normal, Level
Percentage of Salary
Level percent of pay

22 years

n/a
5.87%
2.30%
2.80%

6.8% for 2024, decreasing
to an ultimate rate of 4.14%
in 2078

Based on CalPERS Tables
Mortality projected fully
generational with Scale
MP-18

56



2021 2022 2023 2024

$ 158,425 § 189,666 $ 170,924 § 170,520
(189,734) (140,592) (175,938) (191,619)

$ (31,309) _$ 49,074 $ (5,014) _$ (21,099)
$ 3,689,171 § 3,946,896 $ 2,740,450 $ 2,740,450
5.14% 3.56% 6.42% 6.99%

57



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

58



STATISTICAL SECTION

59



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

60



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Statistical Section

Table of Contents

This section of the Citrus Heights Water District's (District) comprehensive annual financial report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary infirmation says about the government's
overall financial health.

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the District's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Component............... 64
Operating Revenue by SOUrCe.........cocviiiiiiiiiiiie e, 66
Operating Expenses by Activity.........c.cooiiiii 67

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District's ability to generate
water revenues, the most significant source of revenue to the District.

ReveNUE Base. .. ..., 70
Revenue Rates. ... . ..o 71
CUuStOMErs DY TYPe. . e 72
Principal CUuStOMErS. ... ..o 73

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the District's
current levels of outstanding debt, and the District's ability to manage debt in the future.
Ratios of Outstanding Debt...........coooiiiii 76
DEDt COVEIAGE. . i 77

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the District's financial activities take place.

Demographic and Economic Statistics..............ccooviiiiiiiiiiiin. 80
Principal EMPIOYErS. .. ... 81
Operating Information Page

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the District's financial report relates to the services the District provides and the
activities it performs.
Full-Time Employees by Department................ccooiiiiiiiiiis 84
Operating INdiCators. .........o.oiiiii e 85

61



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

62



FINANCIAL TRENDS

63



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 1

Changes in net position:

Operating revenues (see Schedule 2) $ 10,884,550 $ 12,325,057 $ 14,043,049 $ 14,375,044 $ 15,340,476
Operating expenses (see Schedule 3) (6,023,057) (7,043,963) (7,534,381) (9,531,439) (11,230,314)
Depreciation and amortization (2,098,944) (2,203,170) (2,345,281) (2,388,634) (2,435,900)
Operating income(loss) 2,762,549 3,077,924 4,163,387 2,454,971 1,674,262
Non-operating revenues(expenses)
Investment income 19,093 38,313 63,531 159,437 214,962
Miscellaneous income 28,606 68,203 77,074 107,546 69,322
Groundwater transfers and sales - - 1,058,793 347,583 38,316
Interest expense (173,462) (155,214) (145,911) (147,540) (124,346)
(Loss) gain on disposal of capital assets 4,834 (137,567) (155,343) (164,842) (105,755)
Total non-operating revenues(expenses), net (120,929) (186,265) 898,144 302,184 92,499
Net income before capital contributions 2,641,620 2,891,659 5,061,531 2,757,155 1,766,761
Capital Contributions
Grant Revenues 610,431 715 - - -
Capital contributions 438,567 896,688 55,813 213,121 898,084
Changes in net position $ 3,690,618 $ 3,789,062 $ $ 5117,344 $ 2,970,276 $ 2,664,845
Net position by component:
Prior Year adjustment $ (3,728,767) $ - $ - % - 8 -
Net investment in capital assets 50,895,005 51,801,433 53,350,420 55,029,058 57,193,152
Restricted 533,350 533,796 535,733 541,475 542,660
Unrestricted 4,434,324 7,316,512 10,882,932 11,717,632 12,217,198
Total net position $ 52,133,912 $ 59,651,741 $ $ 64,769,085 $ 67,288,165 $ 69,953,010

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

$5,000,000

$4,000,000

$3,000,000

$2,000,000

$1,000,000

Source: District Administrative Services Department

64



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 1 (Continued)

Changes in net position:

$ 19,203,757 $ 17,517,961 $ 19,433,754 $ 20,132,024 $ Operating revenues (see Schedule 2)
(11,787,520) (10,994,641) (11,599,450) (12,902,517) Operating expenses (see Schedule 3)
(2,469,339) (2,485,902) (2,594,333) (2,668,321) - Depreciation and amortization
4,946,898 4,037,418 5,239,971 4,561,186 - Operating income(loss)
Non-operating revenues(expenses)
116,981 (343) (30,997) 1,438,634 Investment income
42,989 42,759 47,610 19,395 Miscellaneous income
- - - - Groundwater transfers and sales
(95,741) (74,734) (69,691) (50,767) Interest expense
(73,310) (115,032) (39,333) 21,674 - (Loss) gain on disposal of capital assets
(9,081) (147,350) (92,411) 1,428,936 - Total non-operating revenues(expenses), net
4,937,817 3,890,068 5,147,560 5,990,122 - Net income before capital contributions

Capital Contributions
- - - - - Grant Revenues
290,182 2,474,459 440,679 243,443 - Capital contributions

$ 5227999 $ 6364527 $ 5588239 $ 6,233,565 $ - Changes in net position
Net position by component:
$ -8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - Prior Year adjustment
59,531,355 62,822,494 64,942,772 66,242,874 - Net investment in capital assets
- - - - - Restricted
15,649,654 18,723,042 22,191,003 27,124,117 - Unrestricted
$ 75181,009 $ 81545536 $ 87,133,775 §$ 93,366,991 $ - Total net position

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

100,000,000
90,000,000
20,000,000
70,000,000
60,000,000
50,000,000
40,000,000
30,000,000
20,000,000
10,000,000

Net investment in capital assets M Restricted Unrestricted

65



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Operating Revenue By Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 2

Connection Total

Fiscal Year Water Sales and Other Operating

Fees Revenue
2015 $ 9,953,864 $ 930,686 $ 10,884,550
2016 11,602,622 722,435 12,325,057
2017 13,448,691 594,358 14,043,049
2018 14,119,865 255,179 14,375,044
2019 14,823,207 517,269 15,340,476
2020 16,908,986 2,294,771 19,203,757
2021 16,579,945 938,016 17,517,961
2022 18,934,457 499,297 19,433,754
2023 19,915,090 216,934 20,132,024
2024 - - -

OPERATING REVENUE BY SOURCE

25,000,000

20,000,000

15,000,000

10,000,000

5,000,000

Water Sales M Connection and Other Fees

Source: District Administrative Services Department

66



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Operating Expenses by Activity

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 3

Customer

. Service / Water Transmission/ Pumping & . Depreciation & Tota_l
Fiscal Year . . . PR Well Conservation ... Operating
Administration Purchases Distribution . Amortization
Maintenance Expenses
| Other

2015 $ 2514087 $ 1,950,627 $ 1,239,387 $ 132,842 $ 186,114 $ 2,098,944 $ 8,122,001
2016 2,342,957 2,190,061 2,114,019 184,776 212,150 2,203,170 9,247,133
2017 2,543,736 2,692,482 1,963,750 145,077 189,336 2,345,281 9,879,662
2018 3,228,919 2,878,799 2,142,451 717,562 563,708 2,388,634 11,920,073
2019 4,371,420 3,131,903 2,425,827 683,432 617,732 2,435,900 13,666,214
2020 4,999,639 2,917,535 2,490,474 826,804 553,068 2,469,339 14,256,859
2021 4,044,426 2,798,201 2,350,969 1,047,987 753,058 2,485,902 13,480,543
2022 4,481,946 2,785,929 2,637,991 996,949 696,635 2,594,333 14,193,783
2023 5,706,961 2,858,841 2,796,502 842,529 697,684 2,668,321 15,570,838
2024 - - - - - - -

OPERATING EXPENSES BY ACTIVITY

$16,000,000
$15,000,000
$14,000,000
$13,000,000
$12,000,000
$11,000,000
$10,000,000
$9,000,000
$8,000,000 _]
$7,000,000
$6,000,000

$5,000,000 - || .
$4,000,000 M | | ||

$3,000,000 '

$2,000,000 ’

$1,000,000

S0

M Customer Service / Administration/ Other Water Purchases

M Transmission/ Distribution Pumping & Well Maintenance

Conservation Depreciation & Amortization

Source: District Administrative Services Department

67



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

68



REVENUE CAPACITY

69



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Revenue Base

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 4
Water Supply
Consumption Imported Produced % Water
(Acre Feet) (Acre Feet) (Acre Feet) Imported
2015 9,973.47 9,132.60 840.87 91.57%
2016 10,422.44 9,964.89 457.55 95.61%
2017 11,014.52 10,909.88 104.64 99.05%
2018 10,981.66 9,940.53 1,041.13 90.52%
2019 11,001.23 10,642.14 359.09 96.74%
2020 12,003.53 11,001.81 1,001.72 91.65%
2021 11,505.25 7,749.12 3,756.13 67.35%
2022 11,565.65 7,968.36 3,597.29 68.90%
2023 10,843.34 9,718.92 1,124.42 89.63%
2024 11,470.19 10,783.46 686.73 94.01%
CONSUMPTION BY SOURCE

14,000

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

Imported (Acre Feet) M Produced (Acre Feet)
Source: District Operations Department

70



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Water Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 5

2015 2016 2017 2020 2021 2023

Flat Rate Accounts (Bimonthly) i

Single Dwelling n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Duplex Dwelling (per duplex side) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Condominium Dwelling n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Apartments/Mobile Homes n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Irrigation Rate n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Metered Accounts ?

Consumption (per unit cc

Tier 1 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Tier 2 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Tier 3 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Per Unit CCF (No tiers) $ 07663 $ 0.8735 $ 0.9871 $ 1.0167 $ 1.0674 $ 1.1800 $ 1.1800 $ 1.1900 $ 1.4300 $ 1.6000
Service Charge (bimonthly)

Commercial/Domestic 3/4" $ 3689 $ 4205 $ 4752 $ 4894 $§ 5138 $§ 5754 $§ 5754 $ 56.08 $§ 6035 $ 5571
Commercial/Domestic 1" 56.13 63.98 72.30 74.46 78.18 87.29 87.29 91.33 94.69 101.28
Commercial/Domestic 1-1/2" 68.95 78.60 88.82 91.48 96.05 136.86 136.86 150.08 151.92 177.23
Commercial/Domestic 2" 133.07 151.69 171.41 176.55 185.37 196.35 196.35 220.58 220.60 293.41
Commercial/Domestic 3" 210.02 239.42 270.54 278.65 292.58 384.74 384.74 443.82 438.07 592.85
Commercial/Domestic 4" 415.22 473.35 534.89 550.93 578.47 662.36 662.36 773.14 758.81  1,034.13
Irrigation 3/4" 36.89 42.05 47.52 48.94 51.38 57.54 57.54 56.08 60.35 $ 55.71
Irrigation 1" 56.13 63.98 72.30 74.46 78.18 87.29 87.29 91.33 94.69 101.28
Irrigation 1-1/2" 68.95 78.60 88.82 91.48 96.05 136.86 136.86 150.08 151.92 177.23
Irrigation 2" 133.07 151.69 171.41 176.55 185.37 196.35 196.35 220.58 220.60 293.41
Irrigation 3" 210.02 239.42 270.54 278.65 292.58 384.74 384.74 443.82 438.07 592.85
Irrigation 4" 415.22 473.35 534.89 550.93 578.47 662.36 662.36 773.14 758.81  1,034.13

Notes:

(1) The District completed the migration of Flat-Rate customers to meters in Fiscal Year 2012, and the Flat-Rate was
eliminated for Fiscal Year 2013.

(2) The District abolished its tiered consumption charge beginning in 2014.

Source:
District Administrative Services Department

71



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Customers by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 6

Fiscal Single Family Multi-Family

Commercial Institutional

Year Residential Residential

2015 16,527 2,285 785 130 58 19,785
2016 16,576 2,283 802 131 59 19,851
2017 16,615 2,284 807 132 64 19,902
2018 16,627 2,284 807 132 61 19,911
2019 16,645 2,286 810 132 64 19,937
2020 16,691 2,288 809 132 38 19,958
2021 16,922 2,289 812 133 45 20,201
2022 16,978 2,289 807 133 44 20,251
2023 17,013 2,291 809 133 43 20,289
2024 17,023 2,291 809 133 45 20,301

CUSTOMERS BY TYPE

Single Family Residential B Multi-Family Residential ® Commercial Institutional B Other

Source: District Administrative Services Department
District Water Efficiency Department

72



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Principal Customers

Current Fiscal Year and Ten Years Ago
Schedule 7

Customer Billed Percentage
Units (ccf's) of Total
San Juan Unified School Distri 117,610 2.44%
Sunrise Recreation Park Dist 91,807 1.90%
JMK Investments 80,619 1.67%
JRK Investors 50,395 1.04%
Mt Vernon Memorial Park 45,540 0.94%
Conference Claimants Endowment 31,533 0.65%
Wedgewood Commons Apts LLC 28,607 0.59%
Salishan Apartments 26,424 0.55%
City of Citrus Heights 25,424 0.53%
Vertus Properties Inc. 22,314 0.46%
Total Billed Units: Principal customers 520,273 10.79%
Total Billed Units 4,823,733 100.00%

Customer Billed Percentage

Units (ccf's) of Total
Sunrise Recreation Park Dist 85,089 1.74%
JMK Investments 77,652 1.59%
San Juan Unified School Distri 74,649 1.53%
JRK Investors 48,533 0.99%
Conference Claimants Endowment 33,899 0.69%
Mt Vernon Memorial Park 31,339 0.64%
City of Citrus Heights 30,280 0.62%
Salishan Apartments 28,994 0.59%
Wedgewood Commons Apts LLC 25,337 0.52%
Vertus Properties Inc. 24,564 0.50%
Total Billed Units: Principal customers 460,336 9.43%
Total Billed Units 4,882,661 100.00%
Source:

District Administrative Services Department

73



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

74



DEBT CAPACITY

75



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Ratios of OQutstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 8
Certificates Certificates Certificates = Refunding
of of of Revenue Unamortized No. of Debt

Fiscal Participation Participation Participation Bonds Premiums Total Connections Per Capita
Year 2000 2003 @ 2010 @ 2012 ¥ Debt ®) (Rounded) ©
2015 - - 2,530,000 2,025,000 322,486 4,877,486 19,785 246.52
2016 - - 2,060,000 1,950,000 287,666 4,297,666 19,851 216.50
2017 - - 1,575,000 1,870,000 252,847 3,697,847 19,902 185.80
2018 - - 1,070,000 1,790,000 218,027 3,078,027 19,911 154.59
2019 - - 545,000 1,705,000 183,208 2,433,208 19,937 122.04
2020 - - - 1,615,000 153,751 1,768,751 19,958 88.62
2021 - - - 1,520,000 140,381 1,660,381 20,201 82.19
2022 - - - 1,420,000 127,011 1,547,011 20,251 76.39
2023 - - - 1,315,000 113,641 1,428,641 20,289 70.41
2024 - - - - - - 20,301 -
Notes:

(1) In October 2000, the District issued $7,900,000 of Certificates of Participation, Series 2000 to finance the cost of capital improvement

projects.

@ In December 2003, the District issued $2,915,000 of Certificates of Participation, Series 2003 to finance the cost of capital
improvement projects.

(3) In September 2010, the District issued $5,155,000 of Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2010 to retire the outstanding 2000
Certificates of Participation.

(4) In April 2012, the District issued $2,275,000 of Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 to retire the outstanding 2003 Certificates of
Participation.

|
T

OUTSTANDING DEBT
5,000,000

4,000,000

3,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

COP's2000 ® COP's 2003 COP's 2010 Bonds 2012  m Unamortized Premiums

Source: District Administrative Services Department

76



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Debt Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 9
. Operating Net Available Debt Service Coverage

Fiscal Year  Net Revenues Expenses Revenues Principal Interest Total Ratio
2015 11,357,402 (8,122,001) 3,235,401 510,000 173,462 683,462 4.73
2016 13,190,694 (9,247,133) 3,943,561 520,000 155,214 675,214 5.84
2017 15,087,104 (9,879,662) 5,207,442 545,000 145,911 690,911 7.54
2018 15,037,889 (11,920,073) 3,117,816 565,000 147,540 712,540 4.38
2019 15,557,321 (13,666,214) 1,891,107 585,000 124,346 709,346 2.67
2020 19,290,417 (14,256,859) 5,033,558 635,000 95,741 730,741 6.89
2021 17,445,345 (13,480,543) 3,964,802 95,000 74,734 169,734 23.36
2022 19,411,034 (14,193,783) 5,217,251 100,000 69,691 169,691 30.75
2023 21,611,727 (15,570,838) 6,040,889 105,000 50,767 155,767 38.78
2024 - - - - - - -

COVERAGE RATIO
Source: District Administrative Services Department

77



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

78



DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

79



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Demographics and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Calendar Years
Schedule 10

City of Citrus Heights " County of Sacramento'"

Personal
y Unemploy Income
ment Rate (thousands of
dollars) @

Personal U I t Personal Income  Personal
Income (Per  population © nemploymen (thousands of Income (Per

Rate
Capita) @ dollars) @ Capita) @

Fiscal Total Number of

. 3)
Year Connections Ropulation

2015 19,785 86,759 5.7% 5,308,263 61,184 1,507,458 5.4% 69,100,516 45,839
2016 19,851 87,380 5.0% 6,043,288 69,161 1,527,967 5.0% 71,627,441 46,878
2017 19,902 87,931 3.8% 5,952,753 67,698 1,547,198 3.9% 74,690,008 48,274
2018 19,911 87,910 3.7% 6,388,859 72,675 1,561,413 3.8% 78,526,608 50,292
2019 19,937 87,796 3.2% 6,710,775 76,436 1,576,171 3.2% 82,829,648 52,551
2020 19,958 87,583 7.6% 7,102,719 81,097 1,586,566 8.3% 91,419,845 57,621
2021 20,201 87,404 4.4% 7,640,071 87,411 1,588,810 4.7% 98,112,318 61,752
2022 20,251 87,708 3.8% 7,581,480 86,440 1,584,380 4.0% 98,175,817 61,965
2023 20,289 86,239 4.4% $7,614,214 88,292 1,584,288 4.4% 103,143,749 65,104
2024 20,301 - 4.6% - - 1,611,231 4.9% - -
Notes: (1) Demographic and economic statistics are provided for the City of Citrus Heights (City) and the County of Sacramento (County) because these

statistics are not separatemly available for the District's service area. As the District is primarily comprised of some areas of the City, and
unincorporated areas of the County, the District believes that data from the City and the County is representative of the conditions and experience of

(3) Population data is not yet available for Fiscal Year 2024.

UNEMPLOYMENT VS PERSONAL INCOME, CITY

$100,000
$90,000
$80,000
$70,000
$60,000
$50,000
$40,000
$30,000
$20,000
$10,000
$_

I Personal Income (Per Capita) (2) Unemployment Rate

UNEMPLOYMENT VS PERSONAL INCOME, COUNTY

$70,000
$60,000
$50,000
$40,000
$30,000
$20,000
$10,000

s,

S

Personal Income (Per Capita) (2) Unemployment Rate

Sources: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis
U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics
U.S. Census Bureau
State of California Employment Development Department

80



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Principal Employers @

Current Fiscal Year and Ten Years Ago
Schedule 12

Percentage of

Employer Employees Rank Employment
State of California 118,130 1 16.82%
UC Davis Health 16,617 2 1.94%
County of Sacramento 13,653 3 1.80%
Kaiser 4
Permanente 12,624 2.37%
United States Government 10,699 5 1.05%
Sutter Health 10,129 6 1.52%
Dignity Health 7,353 7 1.44%
San Juan Unified School District 5,499 8 0.72%
City of Sacramento 5,029 9 0.71%
Apple 5,000 10 0.78%
Total 204.7 29.15%
Total County Employment 702,500 100.00%

Percentage of

Employer Employees Rank Employment
State of California 72,220 1 10.72%
County of Sacramento 10,700 2 1.59%
United States 3
Government 9,906 1.47%
UC Davis Health 9,905 4 1.47%
Sutter Health 7,352 5 1.09%
Dignity Health 6,212 4 0.92%
Intel Corporation 6,000 6 0.89%
Kaiser Permanente 5,421 5 0.80%
Elk Grove Unified School District 5,410 9 0.80%
Sacramento City Unified School Disti 4,200 10 0.62%
Total 137,326 20.37%
Total County Employment 673,727 100.00%
Notes:

(1) Data is not separately available
for the District's service area. As
the District serves an area
comprising, in large part, the City

Source:
Sacramento Business Journal
U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

82



OPERATING INFORMATION

83



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
District Employees by Department

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 11

Department 2020 2021
Administration 9 9 9 10 10 10 11 1" 12 13
Engineering 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 6
Operations 16 16 16 16 17 21 20 18 18 19
Water Efficiency 2 2 2 3 3 0 0 2 2 2
Total 31 31 32 34 35 36 36 36 38 40

Notes:
(1) The Water Efficiency department was reorganized as part of the Operations department in 2020.

EMPLOYEES BY DEPARTMENT

© o ~
— ~ ~
o o o

~ ~ ~

Administration M Engineering Operations Water Efficiency

Source: District Administrative Services Department

84




CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
Other Operating and Capacity Indicators

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 13

Total U AT Pipeline

Demand Wells Meters Hydrants

Connections (Acre Feet) (mi)

2015 19,785 9,973.47 245.56 4 19,594 2,087
2016 19,851 10,422.44  248.19 5 19,789 2,133
2017 19,902 11,014.52  249.31 6 19,912 2,160
2018 19,911 10,981.66  249.97 6 20,007 2,181
2019 19,937 11,001.23  250.26 6 20,043 2,368
2020 19,958 12,003.53  251.97 6 20,060 2,373
2021 20,201 11,505.25 252.57 6 20,282 2,367
2022 20,251 11,565.65 253.74 6 20,300 2,170
2023 20,289 10,843.34  254.91 6 20,329 2,190
2024 20,301 11,470.19 253.65 6 20,361 2,176
Source: District Administrative Services Department

District Engineering Department
District Water Efficiency Department

85



~

S

CITRUS
HEIGHTS

W A T E R

DISTRICT
Citrus Heights Water District

6230 Sylvan Road

Citrus Heights, CA 95610 916-725-6873 www.chwd.org




ATTACHMENT 2

Series 2012A Revenue Refunding Bonds
Debt Service Schedule



CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Set forth below is a schedule of Citrus Heights Installment Payments and other Citrus Heights
Contract payments for the period ending February 1 in each of the years indicated:

Citrus Heights Installment Payment

Citfruy Heights Total Citrus

February 1 Principal Interest Total Contracts™’ Heights Payments
2013 $ 105,000.00 § 7071823 $ 175,718.23 $  573,400.00 § 749.118.23
2014 75,000.00 98,787.50 173,787.50 570.000.00 743,787.50
2015 70,000.00 97,287.50 167.287.50 567.250.00 734,537.50
2016 75,000.00 95,187.50 170,187.50 569.200.00 739,387.30
2017 80,000.00 92.937.50 172,937.50 571,200.00 744,137.50
2018 80,000.00 89,737.50 169,737.50 567.400.00 737.137.50
2019 §5,000.00 86,137.50 171.137.50 568.000.00 739,137.50
2020 90,000.00 83.587.50 173,587.50 567.800.00 741,387.50
2021 93,000.00 79,087.50 174,087.50 566.800.60 740,887.50
2022 100,000.00 74,337.50 174,337.50 - 174,337.50
2023 105,000.00 69,337.50 174,337.50 - 174,337.50
2024 110,000.00 64.087.50 174,087.50 - 174,087.50
2025 110,000.00 60,787.50 170,787.50 - 170,787.50
2026 115,000.00 57.487.50 172.487.50 - 172,487.50
2027 120,000.00 51,450.00 171,450.00 - 171,450.00
2028 130,000.00 45,150.00 175,150.00 - 175,150.00
2029 130,060.00 38,325.00 168,325.00 168,325.00
2030 140,060.00 31,500.00 171,500.00 - 171,500.00
2031 145,000.00 24,150.00 169,150.00 - 169,150.00
2032 155,000.00 16,537.50 171,537.50 - 171.537.50
2033 160,000.00 8.400.00 168.400.00 - 168.400.00
TOTAL $2.275,000.00 $1,335018.23 $3.610,01823 § 512105000 $8,731.068.23

) Reflects payments under the 2010 Installment Purchase Agreement. See the caption “CITRUS HEIGHTS FINANCIAL
INFORMATION—OQutstanding Revenue Obligations.”
Source: Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates.

SECURITY FOR THE 2612 BONDS
Limited Obligations Payable From Revenues

General. The District is obligated to make payments of principal of and interest on the 2012 Bonds
solely from Revenues under the Indenture. The term “Revenues” is defined in the Indenture to mean the
District Installment Payments, the Citrus Heights Installment Payments and the investment earnings thereon.
NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING IN THE INDENTURE OR THE 2012 BONDS, THE TRUSTEE 1S
NOT REQUIRED TO APPLY ANY MONEYS OTHER THAN THE REVENUES, THE MONEYS IN THE
REVENUE FUND DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE AND OTHER MONEYS PLEDGED UNDER THE
INDENTURE FOR ANY OF THE PURPOSES IN THE INDENTURE MENTIONED, WHETHER FOR
THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE 2012 BONDS OR FOR ANY OTHER
PURPOSE OF THE INDENTURE. The Corporation has assigned to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners
of the 2012 Bonds substantially all of its rights, title and interest in the District Installment Purchase
Agreement and the Citrus Heights Installment Purchase Agreement, including its right to receive District
Installment Payments and Citrus Heights Installment Payments and its right to enforce payment by the District
under the District Installment Purchase Agreement and payment by Citrus Heights under the Citrus Heights
Installment Purchase Agreement.

All of the Revenues, all amounts held in the Revenue Fund described in the Indenture and any other
amounts (including proceeds of the sale of the 2012 Bonds) held in any fund or account established pursuant to
the Indenture (except the Rebate Fund) have been irrevocably pledged to secure the payment of the principal of



AGENDA ITEM: B-1

DISTRICT STAFF REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE CHWD FINANCING CORPORTATION
JUNE 24, 2025 ANNUAL MEETING

SUBJECT : CONFIRMATION / APPOINTMENT OF CHWD FINANCING CORPORATION
OFFICERS
STATUS . Action Item

REPORT DATE  : June 13, 2025
PREPARED BY : Brittney Moore, Administrative Services Manager/Chief Board Clerk

OBJECTIVE:
Consider confirmation and appointment of Citrus Heights Water District (CHWD) Financing Corporation
Officers.

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:
In accordance with District Board of Directors and Officers Policy No. 2010, the President and Vice President
of the CHWD Board of Directors are elected by a majority vote each December, or as required.

The CHWD Financing Corporation Annual Meeting occurs between May and August, with a customary

practice of appointing Financing Officers based on recommendations that align with current board

appointments.

Existing Officers:
President Caryl F. Sheehan
Vice President David C. Wheaton
Director Raymond A. Riehle

Chief Financial Officer

Annie Liu

Secretary

Hilary M. Straus

Proposed Officers:
President Raymond A. Riehle Appoint as President
Vice President Caryl F. Sheehan Appoint as Vice President
Director David C. Wheaton Appoint as Director

Chief Financial Officer

Annie Liu

Reconfirm as CFO

Secretary

Hilary M. Straus

Reconfirm as Secretary

RECOMMENDATION:

Confirm and appoint the following Citrus Heights Water District Financing Corporation Officers:

President Raymond A. Riehle Appoint as President
Vice President Caryl F. Sheehan Appoint as Vice President
Director David C. Wheaton Appoint as Director

Chief Financial Officer

Annie Liu

Reconfirm as CFO

Secretary

Hilary M. Straus

Reconfirm as Secretary

ACTION:

Moved by Director

, Seconded by Director

, Carried




	Financing Corporation Meeting Agenda June 24 2025
	Item CC-1: Financing Corporation Annual Meeting Minutes August 27, 2024
	Item P-1: Status of SJWD/CHWD Revenue Refunding Bonds
	Attachment 1: 2024 Continuing Disclosure Annual Report
	Attachment 2: Refunding Bonds Debt Schedule

	Item B-1: Appointment of Financing Corp Officers



